EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Monday, October 23, 2017
6:00 pm
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

VL.

VIL.

VIl

Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann Thomas Titus
Eric Busse Keith Hennig
David Hamilton John Rasmussen

Approve Agenda.

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:
[ ]

Information and Discussion:
A. 2018-2019 School Year Calendar.

Budget Finance — Chair, Hammann:
A. Discussion Items:
1. 2017-2018 Final Budget Update.
2. Third Friday Attendance/Open Enrollment/Home-Schooled/JEDI/Alternative Education,
and 4K Student Reports.
3. 2018 Potential Referendum Update.
4. Evansville Education Foundation Update.
5. Insurance Committee Update.
B. Develop Budget Finance Agenda Items for January 27 Meeting.

Business (Action ltems):

A. Approval of 2017-2018 Tax Levy Amount and Final Budgets.

B. Approval of Staff Changes: Hiring of High School Girls JV1 Basketball Coach and 7t Grade
Boys Basketball Coach.

Consent (Action ltems):

A. Approval of the 2018-2019 School Year Calendar.

B. Approval of October 9, 2017, Regular Meeting Minutes
C. Approval of September Bills and Reconciliation.

Employee Handbook Committee Suggested Changes — Chair, Hennig:

A. First Reading:
1. Part 3, Support Staff, Pg. 58, Section 2, 2.02, Evaluation Procedures, F.
2. Part 1, All Employees, Pg. 25, Section 4, 4.01, Grievance Purpose.



. Part 1, All Employees, Pg. 39, Section 16, Conformity to Law.

. Part 2, Certified Staff, Pg. 48, Section 6, 6.01, Reasons for Reduction in Force.

. Part 3, Support Staff, pg. 60, Section 5, 5.01, Reduction in Staff.

. Part 3, Support Staff, Pg. 61, Section 6, 6.01, Notice of Resignation of Employment.

. Part 5, Co-and Extra-Curricular Staff, Pg. 73, Section 1, 1.01, C, Letter of Assignment.

. Part 6, Substitute and Seasonal Staff, Pg. 76, Section 1, 1.03, Dismissal/Removal From
Substitute List and pg. 77, 2.02, F, Assignments and Responsibilities.

9. Employee Acknowledgement, Pg. 79.

00N Ul bW

IX. Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:
A. Continuous System Improvement (CS!) 2017-2018 CSlI/District Goals.
B. Presentation by Bob Butler, WASB Representative — Key Work of a School Board.
C. Develop Board Development Agenda Items for January 27 Meeting.

X. Future Agenda — November 13, 2017, Regular Board Meeting Agenda.

Xl. Adjourn.

This notice may be supplemented with additions to the agenda that come to the attention of the
Board prior to the meeting. A final agenda will be posted and provided to the media no later than
24 hours prior to the meeting or no later than 2 hours prior to the meeting in the event of an
emergency.

Upon reasonable notice, all reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of people
with disabilities through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request
this service, contact the District Office at 340 Fair Street, 882-3387 or 882-3386. Persons needing
more specific information about the agenda items should call 882-3387 or 882-3386 at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Posted: 10/17/17



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda/Briefs
Monday, October 23, 2017
6:00 pm
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann Thomas Titus
Eric Busse Keith Hennig
David Hamilton John Rasmussen
. Approve Agenda.

Suggested Motion: | move to approve the agenda as presented.

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:
[ ]

Information and Discussion:

A. 2018-2019 School Year Calendar — District Administrator, Mr. Roth, held a Calendar
Committee Meeting on September 19, 2017. Seven Committee members served. The
enclosed calendar is similar to this year’s current calendar. | am asking that you approve
this calendar later in the meeting.

Budget Finance — Chair, Hammann:
A. Discussion ltems:
1. 2017-2018 Final Budget Update — Business Manager, Mr. Swanson, will give an update.

2. Third Friday Attendance/Open Enrollment/Home-Schooled/JEDI/Alternative Education,
and 4K Student Reports — Enclosed are the third Friday student count numbers.

3. 2018 Potential Referendum Update — Mr. Roth will give an update.

4. Evansville Education Foundation Update — Ms. Hammann will give an update.

5. Insurance Committee Update — Enclosed are the minutes of the Committee’s meetings
of September 21, and October 2. Their next meeting is scheduled for November 6.

B. Develop Budget Finance Agenda Items for January 27 Meeting.

Page 1 of 3



VI. Business (Action Iltems):
A. Approval of 2017-2018 Tax Levy Amount and Final Budgets — Mr. Swanson will present.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the revised budgets as presented and the 2017-
2018 tax levy amount of $

Roll Call Vote -

B. Approval of Staff Changes: Hiring of High School Girls JV1 Basketball Coach and 7™ Grade
Boys Basketball Coach — Please approve the following hires:

1. Stephanie Aasen, High School Girls JV Basketball. Stephanie will replace Kurt Ritchie as
High School Girls JV1 Basketball Coach starting November 6, 2017. Stephanie is a
former college basketball player at Clarke University and has two years of high school
frosh girls’ basketball coaching experience at Janesville Parker High School. Stephanie
will be paid a salary of $2,296.

2. Peter Hanke, Boys Middle School 71" Grade Basketball. Peter will replace 71" grade boys
basketball coach Mark Simonson who moved to the 8" grade boys’ basketball position
starting October 30, 2017. Peter has worked college basketball camps with Dick
Bennett, Clem Haskins, Ray Meyer, Rick Pitino and Bobby Knight. Peter worked as a
volunteer assistant under Janesville Craig’s Bob Suter. Peter brings head boys varsity
basketball coaching experience from Huntley, IL. Peter will be paid a stipend of $1,808.

Suggested Motion: | move to approve the hiring of Stephanie Aasen, High School Girls JV
Basketball Coach for a stipend of $2,296 and Peter Hanke, Boys Middle School 7t Grade
Basketball Coach for a stipend of $1,808.

VIl. Consent (Action Items): Do you want to remove any items?
A. Approval of the 2018-2019 School Year Calendar —
B. Approval of October 9, 2017, Regular Meeting Minutes —
C. Approval of September Bills and Reconciliation —

Suggested Motion: | move to approve the consent agenda items: 2018-2019 school year
calendar; October 9, 2017, regular meeting minutes; and the September bills and
reconciliation, as presented.

VIll. Employee Handbook Committee Suggested Changes — Chair, Hennig:

A. First Reading:

1. Part 3, Support Staff, Pg. 58, Section 2, 2.02, Evaluation Procedures, F.

Part 1, All Employees, Pg. 25, Section 4, 4.01, Grievance Purpose.
Part 1, All Employees, Pg. 39, Section 16, Conformity to Law.
Part 2, Certified Staff, Pg. 48, Section 6, 6.01, Reasons for Reduction in Force.
Part 3, Support Staff, pg. 60, Section 5, 5.01, Reduction in Staff.
Part 3, Support Staff, Pg. 61, Section 6, 6.01, Notice of Resignation of Employment.
Part 5, Co-and Extra-Curricular Staff, Pg. 73, Section 1, 1.01, C, Letter of Assighment.
Part 6, Substitute and Seasonal Staff, Pg. 76, Section 1, 1.03, Dismissal/Removal From
Substitute List and pg. 77, 2.02, F, Assignments and Responsibilities.

O N e WN

Page 2 of 3



9. Employee Acknowledgement, Pg. 79.

Suggestion #1 — comes forward from a staff member. Suggestions 2-9 come forward at the
suggestion of the District’s lawyer.

IX. Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:
A. Continuous System Improvement (CSI) 2017-2018 CSI/District Goals — Enclosed is a listing
of each of the Committee’s and the goals for:
Climate and Culture/Health and Wellness
Communication and Community Engagement
Staff and Student Teaching and Learning
Technology

The Facilities and Operations Committee will be folded into the Citizens Advisory
Committee (CAC) this year.

B. Presentation by Bob Butler, WASB Representative — Key Work of a School Board — Mr.
Butler will present to the Board.

C. Develop Board Development Agenda Items for January 27 Meeting.

X. Future Agenda — November 13, 2017, Regular Board Meeting Agenda — Enclosed is a draft of
the agenda.

Xl. Adjourn.

Suggested Motion: | move to adjourn the meeting.

FYl -
1. Upcoming Meetings:
- November 13, Board Meeting
- December 11, Board Meeting
- January 15, 2018, Board Meeting
- January 27, Board Meeting
2. Annual meeting minutes enclosed — no Board action.

Page 3 of 3



|eroiddy pieog o} L# Jepusjes

perolddy preog -

7 G061 fejol
8% GG sunr
74 €z Rew IVIOL 5061
¥4 44 judy skepljoH pied |¢ syuapmg oN -(G'1) Aepsyiop Jeyoes
Syl 9l e 71 viol skeq 3o |6} jooyag oN - (g) AepioH
6l 0¢ fienige Gly- Wy G'¢h-pug sheq BujuieaT [euoisssjold 16 Wd Swuepmg oN - ( /1 - ) pud Jspenp
602 74 Aeenuep Gey-pig Ger-1si {skeq Buipesn) 71/sheq Jwopms z/1- 1) | 100yos oy
Gl Gl JaquiegsQ Iapenp Jad sheg ske( or)U0D Juspnis (571 sjuapnjg oN - (g) sAeq Buiuiea jeuoissajoid l
g'll 0z JaqUBAON [euonanaisuj [[nd / [eljed m>mn_ enuon ﬂmlv_.
44 €C 18qoI00
6} 0c Jlaquieydeg
0 ¥ Jsnbny 74
skeq sfeq Yuopy 1z
|euononiisu| J0BJJUOD V1
9 g 14 € L
4e1s Joj Aepxyiom /) 0} aunp
sjuepnig g-Y Aeq g/} “JsHenD Uy jo pul sunp HL [ 3am [ NnL | OW HL | GmM | NL | OW nL
|00YoS ON - AeQ [BLOWS 1z Rely 0 5107 8 e
JuBLLIBOUBWIIOY (0042 YBIH vz fen
|ooyog ON - Aeq Buluies [euoisssjold 2 ludy oc | 62 9z
eyses 12 ludy G | v | € | ¢ il { 02 | 61 | 81 6l
ulnjey sjuspmg } ludy 8l Ll 9l G} ¥l ¢l ¢l " 14
jooyog oN - earg Buuds 67 - Gz Yotely Ll ool 6 8 L 9 g 14 G
Buipeio) )Y Aeq g/l “4eHEND pig Jo pug ¢c Yo ¥ € 14 l
jooyos oN - Aeq Bujules |euoissejoid ¥ Yoley HL | 3m | NL | ON HL | 3M ] Nl | OW niL
|ooyos oN - Ae Buiuies [euoisssajold 7004 d o : W
Buipeis) gy Aeq /) “JeHeny pug Jo pu3 8} uer
uinjay sjuspnig g uer 1€ 0e 6¢ x4
looyog oN - Aeq Buiuses leuoissejoid guer 2 | e | 2 0z | 6L | 8L | 4l 0z
|004dS ON - Medlg JSJUIM | uer-ygoeqd YA’ 9 Gl ¢l ¢l L 0l el
[00yog ON - Aeq Buiuies jeuoissejoid 9¢ AON oL 6 8 9 g ¥ g€ 9
Jooyos oN - BuiniBsyuey | €¢-1Z PN e | ¢
Buipeis) z1-y Aed /). “opend s} Jo pu ¢ MON HL | am | nL HL [ am | NnL | OW nL
100Yog op - Aeq BululesT] jeuoisselold 8100 6107 Aie Q107 19quo29(] a0
100y3s jo Keq jsiid v 1des
Jooyos oN - Aeq Joge1] ¢ 1deg e | og Iz | % | s 14
looyog oN - skeq Bujuiea [euoissajoid 0 '6Z ‘8¢ Bny 9 | S | T | € 0c | 6L | 8l
jo0yog ON - AeQ YoM Jeyoea | 1z by 6L | 8L | 2L ]| 9l I 33
uogeusuQ Jeyoes | MeN vz ‘sz Bny| AT B ] 6 9 G ¥
skeq jooyog o[ Yoeg wd z-0} - 61 Bny |l s | v | et ‘
sfeq(ooyog o) oeg  wd -¢ - § Bny VS | ¥4 | HL [am | nL | OW VS | ¥4 | HL | am | nL | OW VS | ¥4 | HL | am | nL

Jeaj, [00Y9S 6L0Z-8L0Z 3O13SId |0

Oyd¢ d||IASUBAT

0 Ny



£10¢/0T/0T -91eQ

0Z8'1 £98°1 vS8'l €S8°1 6¢€8'1 9IPL'T SEL'T LILT LSL'Y SLL'T 88L'T »Lasia

0SS s 1SS LSS ySS SVS LVS (45 86¥ LTS 60S
LET 6¢1 wi vEl €€l |54 6€1 00T STT [l Y54 4!
€T 8¢ ov1 Wi 8¢ LT1 8T1 8¢ 66 871 71 1
9¢1 €T (431 LY1 54! 9¢1 €€l 0¢I1 144! S0T1 921 01
91 8¢l LET 7ET wi vl Lyl 144! LET IST SIT 6
(412 434 9Ty (1157 (Y44 447 (142 1487 447 61Iv %44
L1 0ST 49! 8¢1 6€1 el el wi jiai 9¢T o1 8
431 L¥1 Svl Ly1 Ly1 LET LET 1231 144! ov1 €€l L
€€l S€1 621 Sv1 94! 0ST 8¥1 8¢1 6¢€1 54| 44! 9
88¢ €8¢ 98¢ 86€ €6€ 76€ 76€ (434 osy 91p 91p
oF1 LTI 8C1 621 6T1 |54 6€1 %al 8¢T 3¢€T laai S
701 IST IST (44! 0zl LTl LT1 Lyl orl1 9¢T1 123! 14
or1 S01 LOT Lyl 144l 144! 921 121 (431 Tl 8¢l €
0Ly 708 16¥ 89% £9¥ L8E 9LE 6LE 117 €I vy
66 LET ot €01 66 Syl 54! 31T (44 [521 PPT T
621 16 68 148! €Il €8 18 Sr1 44| 971 81 I
(0Z3sT ‘91
9¢ 9¢ €¢ 53 €€ 143 9¢ -4
S6 €T1 (44! 38 L8 111 901 701 St1 174! 1€l b
601 LOT SOT 441 441 D44
I L 9 01 6 (4! 01 4! 4l SI L1 HOd
T I (4 T S AUO "1/S

dos-¢1 ugf-¢]  d9S-9] uef-8 das-81 uef-6  deS-61  d9S-0T  d9S-IT  dSS-91  d9S-0I
po[loauyg  po[loIwq  po[[ofufy  pIf[oiuy  pofloiuwg  Po[loiuy  pofoIuy  pPo[jofuwy  PO[[OAUF  pafoduy  Pa[oIuy
SI-L10C LI-910C LI-9107 9T-SI0C O9I-ST0C SIFI0T SI-FI0C VI-€I0C S€I-CI0C¢ <I-I10C TI-010C

AMOLSTH INHNTIOUNH IOTILSIA TOOHDS HTTIASNVAA



Evansville Community School District

As of 9/15/2017 count date

JEDI Students
School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 6 3 9/1820
2016-2017 2 2 4/1855
2015-2016 0 4/5 4/1839;5/1853
2014-2015 2/2 3/6 5/1735; 8/1746
Alternative Education - GEDO 2
School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 0 16 16/1820
2016-2017 0 16 16/1855
2015-2016 0 14/14 14/1839; 14/1853
2014-2015 0 12/13 12/1735; 13/1746
Home-Schooled Students
School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 18 5 23/1820
2016-2017 37 9 46/1855
2015-2016 37/33 10/8 47/1839; 41/1853
2014-2015 19/40 8/12 27/1735;52/1746
2013-2014 46/45 13/12 59/1717;57/1696
Part-Time Home-Schooled Students
School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 1 1 2/1820
2016-2017 2 0 2/1855
2015-2016 3/3 o] 3/1839; 3/1853
2014-2015 2/2 0/0 2/1735; 2/1746

HomeSchool Athletes/Co-Curricular

School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 0 2 2/1820
2016-2017 1 1 2/1855
2015-2016 1/2 1/1 2/1839; 3/1853
Private Schools
School Year PK-8 High School Total / Total Students Enrolled in District
2017-2018 14 4 18/1820
2016-2017 16 5 21/1855
2015-2016 16/16 3/3 19/1839; 19/1853




Open Enrollment Out

School Year PK-8 High School Total Never Attended ECSD Previous Home School
Virtual |anesville [Other |Virtual panesville | Other
2017-18 20 14 49 3 14 23 123 100 10
2016-17 12 17 53 3 11 21 117 97 13
2015-16 10/10 17/17 57/56 1/1 11/10 22/21 118/115 93/93 12/12
2014-15 14/12 14/14 39/38 5/5 13/13 16/17 101/99 78/79 11
2013-14 8/8 11/11 54/53 3/3 9/9 14/14 99/98 76 7
Open Enrolliment In
School Year PK-8 High School Total Previously Attended Evansville
Janesville Other Janesville Other
2017-18 5 48 6 17 76 66
2016-17 8 45 2 22 77 59
2015-16 0/0 42/42 6/6 20/20 68/68 47/47
2014-15 1/1 33/33 5/5 20/20 59/59 44
2013-14 2/2 30/28 6/4 12/12 50/46 41/37
Open Enrollment 2017-18
Grade Level Open Enroll IN Open Enroll OUT
4K 06 09
KG 09 07
01 10 05
02 01 10
03 09 06
04 03 09
05 02 07
06 04 12
07 04 08
08 05 10
09 05 11
10 06 12
11 04 07
12 08 10
Totals 76 123

Prepared by Mindy Molloy (ISS) and Jen Hansen (Registrar)

Date: 10/10/2017




Evansville Community School District
Insurance Committee Meeting Minutes
Thursday, September 21, 2017
3:30 p.m.

Present: Dee Jay Redders, Corine Schieldt, Annie Hovorka, Deb Fritz, Rin Kundert, Cheryl Thomas, Chris
Schullo, Jerry Roth, Steve Swanson, Greg Kuelz, and Nicole Ritter.
Absent: Caroline Mills.

1. Appoint note taker.
a. Chris Schullo.

2. Reviewed minutes from 4-19-17.
a. Move to approve by Chris, 2" by Cheryl — minutes approved.

3. Discussed Greg, Jerry, and Steve meeting last week.

4. Gregreviewed the process.
a. Ourrole is to make a recommendation to the Board.
b. Inthe past, the Board has always accepted and approved the Committee’s
recommendation.

5. Greg explained HSA vs. HRA to new members.
a. Talked about what other districts nearby are doing.

6. Corine asked “How has HRA worked for us in the past?”
a. Greg-—on average, ~“80% of employees with district insurance use the HRA.
b. Dee Jay asked to see HRA total costs in past years.
c. Greg’s partner, Nikki, said 72% of the HRA dollars were used in 2016-17. Jerry believes
the left over money stays in the general fund balance.

7. Greg explained the purpose of an HSA.

a. Explained that children of insured employees who are not listed as dependents who are
not yet 26 can apply their medical expenses to the $6,000 family deductible.

b. After the $6,000 deductible is met, insurance will cover their medical expenses
{assuming they are expenses that the insurance plan covers).

c. If you use money from your HSA account to pay for their medical costs, you will have to
pay taxes on the money and a 20% early withdrawal fee if the child is under 65. (“Again,
this may change but this is how the law is today.”)

8. Greg explained the advantages of having an HSA.
a. ltis easier for district budgeting.
b. It encourages “smarter” medical decisions.
c. Itis better to put money into an HSA instead of an IRA because the money is pre-tax.

Page 1 0f 2



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Corine asked for a specific example with real numbers.
a. Greg expects to have the hard numbers within a week (by 9-29-17 ??).
b. Greg, Jerry, and Steve have assumed the District would contribute $1,500/$3,000 to
employees’ HSA accounts.
c. Question: How would this be calculated/determined by the District?

Greg said the “primary difference” with an HSA is that prescription costs contribute to the
deductible.
a. Currently prescription co-pays come out of employees’ pockets.
b. Drugs are still the same (reduced) price because the High Deductible Insurance is
through Dean. Employees would not pay retail costs for prescription medications.

Greg explained the “embedded deductible” whereby the $3,000/$6,000 deductible has a
different structure than the current $2,000/54,000 deductible.

Dee Jay wants hard numbers. We can’t have a meaningful conversation with “wishy-washy
numbers.” He wants a historical perspective of District expenditures on health benefits.

Corine discussed starting an HSA in January vs. July.

a. Staff members have voiced concern about paying two deductibles in the 2017-18 school
year.

b. Concerns were raised about a teacher retiring in June not getting their full insurance
benefit (only getting % a year).

c. The District budget runs from July 1 to June 30. Does it make sense to run the health
benefit on the same schedule?

d. Greg will give specifics on different scenarios at our next meeting.

Discussed the HSA relationship to/with Medicare.
Next meeting date set for Monday, October 2 at 4:15 pm in the District Board Room.

Move to adjourn by Cheryl. 2" by Chris — meeting adjourned 5:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Chris Schullo (9-26-17)

Approved: 10/2/17

Page 2 of 2



Evansville Community School District
Insurance Committee Meeting Minutes
Monday, October 2, 2017
4:15 p.m.

Present: Dee Jay Redders, Corine Schieldt, Annie Hovorka, Deb Fritz (at 4:30), Rin Kundert, Cheryl
Thomas, Chris Schullo, Jerry Roth, Steve Swanson, Greg Kuelz, Nicole Ritter, and Caroline Mills.

1. Appoint note-taker.
a. Chris Schullo.

2. Reviewed minutes from 9-21-17.
a. Deb Fsaid the 9-21-17 minutes should include something about HSA/Medicare so it was
added to the 9-21 minutes by Chris Schullo.
b. Motion by Jerry to approve the minutes from 9-21-17 assuming the addition of the
HSA/Medicare discussion. 2™ by Cheryl. Minutes approved.

3. Reviewed hard numbers for 4 school years (2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17).

a. Estimated 2018 Health Plan Year Costs —a question was posed whether or not the
school district would be willing to pay the additional $6,238 to move to an HSA Jan 1
and having the district contribute $2600 single and $5200 family to each employee’s
HSA.

b. Employees aged 65 and up are included in the calculations done in the table.
It was agreed that should not include columns E & F in the all-staff presentation. Some
staff members may interpret the negative balances (in red) as the district saving money
on their backs.

4. Question —won’t going Jan-Dec with an HSA mess up budgeting for the District?

a. Greg said most districts with HSAs are running them on a July 1 —June 30 cycle.

b. Corine advocated for the insurance (HRA/HSA) to be on the same cycle as the budget.

c. The group reached a pretty solid consensus that trying to begin an HSA on January 1
would cause problems. Cheryl saw some benefits to starting on Jan 1.

d. Going to an HSA in January would make staff have to pay two different deductibles in
the 2017-18 school year.

e. Jerry said the Board will “struggle with the same things that we’re struggling with.”

5. Discussed some of the benefits of waiting to make a possible health benefit change on July 1
rather than Jan 1.

a. Aligns with school budget timeline.

b. Gives the Committee more time to present information to all staff members.

c. Agreed the purpose of the all-staff meetings were to educate all staff so they can make
an informed decision when it comes time to vote.

d. To educate staff, we need to be able to give them specific scenarios (Greg will bring
some to the Oct 9 meeting).

Page 1 of 2



6. Began laying out a plan/time-line.
a. Insurance Committee meets once a month followed by a once-a-month all-staff
meeting.
b. We can have a “short flex” Jan 1 to Jun 30. Then begin a full year Flex Plan (if we don’t
go to an HSA) on July 1 (which would align our flex plan to the school year, as well.
c. Do staff survey in February.
d. Get bids from Dean (and other insurers??) in March.

7. Next Insurance Committee meeting scheduled for October 9, at 3:15 in the District Board Room.

8. Move to adjourn by Cheryl. 2™ by Chris — meeting adjourned 5:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Chris Schullo (10-6-17) Approved: 10/9/17

Page 2 of 2



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Evansville, Wisconsin

The regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Evansville Community School District was
held Monday, October 9, 2017, at 6:00 pm in the District Board and Training Center.

The meeting was called to order by President Mason Braunschweig. Roll call was taken.
Members present: Braunschweig, Busse, Hamilton, Hammann, Hennig, Rasmussen, Titus, and
HS Board Reps Parker and Krueger.

APPROVE AGENDA i
Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to approve the agenda as presented
Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote). 4 A

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS/RECOGNITION/UPCOMING EVENTS
e National School Lunch Program - October 9 - 13 ; L

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
None.

INFORMATION & DISCUSSION iy 2
High School Representatives, Ms. Parker and Ms' Krueger presented high school events.
Discussion. e ‘.

ﬁw\i}‘b’d'ate on the 2018 potential referendum. The
,Q-McKenna Middle School last week and will tour the

District Administrator, Mr. Roth, present
Citizens Advisory Committee toured the J’
High School next week. G

Mr. Roth presented an updatéd,bpdtential referendum facilities and operations needs
document. Discussion;.;

Mr. Braunschweig Ied dlscussmn ‘on the upcoming dates for Board meetings. Discussion. The
upcoming Board meeti __g dates will be: November 13; December 11; January 15 and 27; March
12, W|th a potentlal i rneetlng if necessary; and April 9 and 23.

PUBIZ‘I,(_Z: PRESENTATIONS

BUSINESS (Action Items)

Motion by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to accept the resignations of April
Schmitt, Food Service Worker-Cook 1, effective October 6, 2017; Penny Messling, National
Honor Society Advisor, effective at the start of the 2017-18 school year; and Garth Coats, 8th
grade Basketball Coach, effective September 14, 2017, and thank them all for their service in
the District. Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote).

Motion by Mr. Hennig, seconded by Mr. Rasmussen, moved to approve the hiring of Amy
Hionis, Special Education Assistant, at $12.50/hour; Maria Ganoung, Lunchroom Supervisor, at

Page 1 of 2



$12.50/hour; and Lori Schultz, Food Service Worker, Cook 1, at $12.50/hour. Motion carried, 7-
0 (voice vote).

Motion by Mr. Rasmussen, seconded by Ms. Hammann, moved to approve the hiring of
National Honor Society Co-Advisor, Doug Zblewski, for a stipend of $500; Science Olympiad Co-
Advisors, Penny Messling and Elizabeth Stalder, for stipends of $1,640 each; and Katelyn
Demrow, Middle School Forensics Coach, for a stipend of $984. Motion carried, 7-0 (voice
vote).

Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to approve the admmlstratlons
operations referendum recommendations. Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote).

Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Ms. Hammann, moved to approve policy. #811 1- ,
Family/Guardian Involvement, as presented. Discussion. Motion carried, 7 0 (v0|ce vote).

CONSENT (Action Items) ~ A

Motion by Mr. Hennig, seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to approve the consent agenda items:
September 25, 2017, regular meeting minutes; and policies-#527.1- Whlstleblower #528-Staff
Conduct With Students, #533.1-Criminal Background Checks’ and #744 -Personal and Donated
Property in School Buildings, as presented. Motlon carr|e‘d", 7 O (roII call vote).

FUTURE AGENDA
October 23, 2017, regular meeting agenda shared

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Motion by Mr. Hennig, seconded by Mr. TItLIS moved to contemplate convening into closed
session under Wisconsin State Statute 19 85( J)(c) and (e) to consider employment, promotion,
compensation or performance eva[uatlon data of any public employee over which the
governmental body haSJurlsdlctlon or exercises responsibility, and to deliberate and discuss
strategy concerning collectlve bargammg negotiations; namely to discuss negotiations strategy
concerning the 2017-2018 contract with the Evansville Education Association (EEA) covering
teachers and the Evan;‘swIlef.,;Edu_catlon Association Auxiliary (EEAA) covering support staff; and
to discuss Busing’ss;aManag‘eéf, position. Motion carried, 7-0 (roll call vote).

ADJOURN. -
Meetlng adjourned from executive session at 6:54 pm.

Submitted by Kelly Mosher, Deputy Clerk

Approved: Dated: Approved: 10/23/17
Mason Braunschweig, President

Page 2 of 2



_CHECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/06/2017 82142 R 3-D MOLECULAR DESIGN 2,174.48 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 82143 R DAVE'S ACE HARDWARE 356.29 10 E 000 411 253200 000
09/06/2017 82144 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 118.00 10 E 000 339 253300 000
09/06/2017 82144 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 100 339 253300 000
09/06/2017 82144 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 200 339 253300 000
09/06/2017 82144 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 300 339 253300 000
09/06/2017 82144 R  ADVANCED DISPOSAL 499.00 10 E 400 339 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800062 A  AIRWAY SALES INC 616.23 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82145 R ALBRECHTSON, JACK 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 171800063 A  ANSAY & ASSOCIATES 2,014.00 10 E 000 712 270000 000
09/06/2017 82146 R APPLE COMPUTER INC. 1,950.00 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/06/2017 82147 R ASSOCIATED BENEFITS 887.00 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82148 R AT & T 175.94 10 E 000 355 263300 000
09/06/2017 82149 R ATHLETIC EQUIPMENT R 1,712.50 10 E 400 411 162210 000
09/06/2017 82149 R ATHLETIC EQUIPMENT R 1,351.55 10 E 400 411 162210 000
09/06/2017 171800064 A  BADGER WATER LLC 42.90 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 82150 R BALGORD, GARY 50.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82150 R BALGORD, GARY 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82151 R BINAGI, MWITA 60.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 171800065 A  BLU'S FROYO SHOPPE 17.50 50 E 000 411 257000 000
09/06/2017 82152 R BOBCAT OF JANESVILLE 419.89 10 E 000 324 253500 000
09/06/2017 82153 R BOUZIANE, ROBERT 90.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82154 R BROWN, PERRY 125.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82154 R BROWN, PERRY 100.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82155 R BRUSH, KATHY 6.68 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 171800066 A  BUSSE, ERIC 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82156 R CARTER & GRUENEWALD 45.00 10 E 000 324 253500 000
09/06/2017 82157 R CDW GOVERNMENT INC 17,001.72 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/06/2017 82158 R CENGAGE LEARNING 2,574.00 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 82159 R CHARTER COMMUNICATIO 562.90 10 E 000 355 263300 000
09/06/2017 82159 R CHARTER COMMUNICATIO 2,250.00 10 E 000 310 266400 000
09/06/2017 82160 R CHOATE, ANGELA 36.45 50 L 000 000 815900 000
09/06/2017 82161 R  CONNORS, AMY 4.04 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 82162 R COUEY, HEATHER 100.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82163 R DAVIS, RODNEY 65.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 171800067 A  DECKER EQUIPMENT 1,563.14 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82164 R E & D WATER WORKS IN 18.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800068 A  EAI EDUCATION 113.03 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82165 R ELLIS, CRAIG 238.08 10 E 000 411 253200 000
08/06/2017 82166 R EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CO 228.75 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82167 R EPS/SCHOOL SPEC INTE 834.35 10 E 300 411 120000 004
09/06/2017 82168 R EVANSVILLE ELECTRIC 250.00 10 E 200 323 253301 000
09/06/2017 82169 R FIDELITEC LLC 153.00 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82170 R FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUT 1,677.18 10 E 001 435 222200 000
09/06/2017 82170 R FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUT 1,811.28 10 E 002 435 222200 000
09/06/2017 82170 R FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUT 1,676.88 10 E 003 435 222200 000
09/06/2017 82170 R FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUT 1,811.58 10 E 004 435 222200 000
09/06/2017 171800069 A FRONTLINE TECHNOLOGI 2,400.00 10 E 000 310 221300 365
09/06/2017 171800070 A  GALLMAN, DARLENE 121.15 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/06/2017 82171 R GENESIS INC 297.25 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82172 R GILLE, NANCY 125.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82173 R GOOD GRIEF PRINTING 780.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800071 A  GRANSEE, KELLEY 75.84 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800072 A  GRIBBLE, AMY 148,63 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/06/2017 171800073 A HALLMAN LINDSAY 207.18 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800073 A HALLMAN LINDSAY 207.18 10 E 000 411 253300 000



CHEECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/06/2017 171800073 A  HALLMAN LINDSAY 199.37 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800074 A  HAMMOND, JOLENE 32.28 10 E 300 411 120003 003
09/06/2017 171800074 A  HAMMOND, JOLENE 38.75 10 E 300 411 120003 003
09/06/2017 171800075 A  HEINEMANN 735.48 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 7.23 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 14.46 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 28.92 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 14.46 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 14.46 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800076 A  HELLENBRAND INC 72.30 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82174 R HENTHORN, JEREMIAH 95.60 50 L 000 000 815900 000
09/06/2017 82175 R HJ PERTZBORN 250.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82175 R HJ PERTZBORN 125.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82175 R HJ PERTZBORN 250.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82175 R HJ PERTZBORN 125.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82175 R HJ PERTZBORN 125.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800077 A  HOMAN, RANDALL 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 171800078 A  HRYCAY, STEVEN 125.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 171800078 A  HRYCAY, STEVEN 100.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82176 R HUFFMAN, SCOTT 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 171800079 A  HUMBERG, CHRISTINE 16.56 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82177 R HUMAN RELATIONS MEDI 142,98 10 E 300 411 120000 005
09/06/2017 82178 R HUNT, RIANNE 228.75 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 171800080 A  IMPACT APPLICATIONS 655.00 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/06/2017 82179 R INSIGHT INVESTMENTS 42,580.00 10 E 000 411 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800081 A  JEFF'S PLUMBING & HE 2,730.00 10 E 000 327 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800082 A  JEREMIASON, BETH 24.43 10 E 100 411 120000 002
09/06/2017 82180 R JOHNSON, DENISE 6.68 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 171800083 A  KATZENMEYER, KIMBERL 49.65 10 E 000 342 221300 365
09/06/2017 82181 R  KLEENMARK 291.80 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800084 A  KUEHL, JARED 60.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82182 R  LAKESHORE LEARNING M 1,818.97 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82182 R  LAKESHORE LEARNING M 2,951.15 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/06/2017 171800085 A  LANDMARK SERVICES CO 82.78 10 E 000 335 256610 000
09/06/2017 171800085 A  LANDMARK SERVICES CO 293.06 10 E 000 348 253000 000
09/06/2017 171800085 A  LANDMARK SERVICES CO 333.16 10 E 000 348 253500 000
09/06/2017 82183 R LOGER, NICHOLAS 48.65 50 L 000 000 815900 000
09/06/2017 82184 R  MANSKY, EDWARD 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82185 R MANSKY, RYAN 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82186 R MCCANN'S ROOTER SEWE 210.00 10 E 100 323 253302 000
09/06/2017 82187 R MCGRAW HILL SCHOOL E 5,741.40 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 82187 R MCGRAW HILL SCHOOL E 4,061.09 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 82187 R MCGRAW HILL SCHOOL E 21,208.80 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 171800086 A  MCMILLEN, RICHARD 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82188 R MENARDS 36.94 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800087 A  MIDAMERICA ADMINISTR 65.00 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82189 R MILLER, ARTHUR 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82189 R MILLER, ARTHUR 50.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82189 R MILLER, ARTHUR 100.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82190 R MINOR, PENNY 4.04 21 E 400 411 162108 785
08/06/2017 82191 R MURRAY, DAVID 50.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 171800088 A  NORTH AMERICAN MECHA 1,282.50 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800089 A  NASCO 3,997.38 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 171800089 A  NASCO 11.06 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800089 A  NASCO 394.69 10 E 200 411 121000 000
09/06/2017 171800089 A NASCO 213.92 10 E 100 411 120000 001



CHECK CEECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/06/2017 171800089 A  NASCO 152.80 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 171800090 A  NICHOLSON, CHRIS 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82192 R OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 267.00 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82192 R OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 435.00 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 82193 R OFFICE DEPOT 209.28 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 82193 R OFFICE DEPOT 37.78 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 82193 R OFFICE DEPOT 112.74 10 E 300 411 120000 003
09/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 256.56 27 E 000 411 158000 341
09/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 40.74 10 E 100 411 240000 000
08/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 56.93 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 49.92 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 93.80 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800091 2  OFFICE PRO 870.11 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800091 A  OFFICE PRO 83.11 10 E 100 412 124000 000
09/06/2017 82194 R OPPORTUNITIES INC 175.79 50 E 000 411 257000 000
09/06/2017 82195 R PEARSON EDUCATION 8,857.67 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 82195 R PEARSON EDUCATION 1,119.01 10 E 300 411 120000 003
09/06/2017 82196 R PHILLIPS, JR, JAMES 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 821897 R THE PHONICS DANCE 100.00 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/06/2017 82198 R PIGGLY WIGGLY 27.23 10 E 000 411 221300 000
09/06/2017 82198 R PIGGLY WIGGLY 115.99 10 E 000 411 120000 915
09/06/2017 82199 R PIONEER MANUFACTURIN 2,724.00 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800092 A  PIPER, TIMOTHY 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 171800092 A PIPER, TIMOTHY 50.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 171800093 A  PROFESSIONAL PEST CO 195.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82200 R REALLY GOCD STUFF 1,572.67 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82200 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 62.59 10 E 300 411 120000 005
09/06/2017 82200 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 78.90 10 E 300 411 120000 005
09/06/2017 82200 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 62.59 10 E 300 411 120000 005
08/06/2017 82200 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 737.90 10 B 100 411 120000 006
09/06/2017 171800094 A  REDDERS, DEEJAY 0.60 10 E 000 342 221300 365
09/06/2017 171800094 A  REDDERS, DEEJAY 126.51 10 E 000 342 221300 365
09/06/2017 171800095 A  RENAISSANCE LEARNING 19,387.52 10 E 000 310 221200 113
09/06/2017 82201 R  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 3,076.21 10 E 000 678 281000 000
09/06/2017 171800096 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 98.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800096 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 98.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 171800096 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 438.64 10 E 000 678 281000 000
09/06/2017 171800096 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 3,070.48 10 E 000 678 281000 000
09/06/2017 82202 R RINGHAND BROTHERS IN 4,967.60 10 E 400 341 256740 000
09/06/2017 82203 R ROBERTS, WILLIAM 65.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 75.60 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 115.60 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 1,064.82 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 98.40 10 B 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 659.44 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82204 R SAN A CARE INC 204.12 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/06/2017 82205 R SCHENCK, ROBERT 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82206 R SCHINDLER ELEVATOR C 567.96 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800097 A  SCHOLASTIC INC 1,070.82 10 E 100 411 120000 001
09/06/2017 82207 R SCHOOL MATE 485.00 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 82208 R SCHOOL HEALTH CORPOR 1,375.24 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/06/2017 82208 R SCHOOL HEALTH CORPOR 20.92 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/06/2017 82209 R SCHROEDER, DAVID 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 171800098 A  SCHWEDER, WILLIAM 65.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82210 R SEITZ, JORDAN 90.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/06/2017 82211 R SEW MANY THREADS, LL 45.00 21 E 400 411 162108 785



CHECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 13,588.02 10 E 000 480 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 10,361.76 10 E 00O 480 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 1,689.00 10 B 000 480 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 1,509.00 10 E 00O 480 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 4,013.00 10 E 000 480 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 33,120.00 10 E 000 411 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 4,320.00 10 E Q00 411 266400 000
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 32,200.00 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 4,200.00 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/06/2017 171800099 A SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 57,960.00 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/06/2017 82212 R SHINGLER, MARK 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82213 R SIMPSON, FRANK 6.68 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 82214 R STALKER, BONNIE 125.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82215 R SUPREME SCHOOL 858.95 10 E 300 411 240000 000
09/06/2017 82216 R TAHER 7,939.38 50 E 000 310 257000 000
09/06/2017 171800100 A  TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE 978.00 10 E 000 561 252500 000
09/06/2017 82217 R THEEL, HEATHER 4,04 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 171800101 A  TREETOP PUBLISHING 389.40 10 E 100 411 120000 002
09/06/2017 82218 R TRUESDALE, JOHN 65.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82219 R TRUGREEN 490.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82219 R TRUGREEN 160.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82219 R TRUGREEN 240.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82219 R TRUGREEN 0.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82219 R TRUGREEN 1,275.00 10 E 000 310 253300 000
09/06/2017 82220 R UPS 7.71 10 E 000 353 263300 000
09/06/2017 82220 R UPS 3.66 10 E 000 353 263300 000
09/06/2017 82220 R UPS 68.41 10 E 000 353 263300 000
09/06/2017 82221 R VANDE VOORT, DAVID 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 82222 R VOYAGER SOPRIS 830.04 10 E 100 411 122110 000
09/06/2017 82223 R WANLESS, SUE 6.68 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/06/2017 82224 R WARD-BRODT MUSIC MAL 486.74 10 E 400 411 125500 000
09/06/2017 171800102 A  WAUNAKEE COMM SCHOOL 6,900.00 10 E 000 382 221300 365
09/06/2017 171800103 A  WE ENERGIES 26.28 10 E 100 331 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800103 A  WE ENERGIES 144.05 10 E 200 331 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800103 A  WE ENERGIES 282.11 10 E 300 331 253300 000
09/06/2017 171800103 A  WE ENERGIES 328.91 10 E 400 331 253300 000
09/06/2017 82225 R WEBIT 55.00 10 E 200 942 132000 0CO
09/06/2017 82226 R WERNER, EDWARD 100.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/06/2017 82227 R WISCONSIN TAXPAYERS 18.65 10 E 000 942 232100 000
09/06/2017 82228 R ZEHREN, PETER 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/06/2017 170801 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 146.16 10 E 000 336 253300 000
09/06/2017 170801 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 3,519.27 10 E 100 336 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 98.18 10 E 100 337 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 872.52 10 E 100 338 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 3,342.23 10 E 200 336 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSViLLE WATER & L 377.86 10 E 200 337 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 423.80 10 E 200 338 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 3,188.21 10 E 300 336 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 24.00 10 E 300 337 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 152.17 10 E 300 338 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 16,242.35 10 E 400 336 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 168.39 10 E 400 337 253300 000
09/06/2017 170901 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 298.50 10 E 400 338 253300 000
09/06/2017 82178 V HUNT, RIANNE -228.75 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/06/2017 170903 M  U.S. CELLULAR 471.64 10 E 000 355 263300 000
09/06/2017 170902 M U.S. CELLULAR 261.35 10 E 000 355 263300 000



CEECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/08/2017 82229 R AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL 250.00 10 L 000 000 811670 000
09/08/2017 82230 R CAREER TRACK INC 149.00 10 E 000 941 252500 000
09/08/2017 82231 R FIDUCIARY TRUST INTE 1,274.00 10 L 000 000 811670 000
09/08/2017 82232 R METLIFE 75.00 10 L 000 000 811670 000
09/08/2017 82233 R MG TRUST COMPANY 742.50 10 L 000 000 811670 000
09/08/2017 82233 R MG TRUST COMPANY 7.50 27 L 000 000 811670 000
09/08/2017 82234 R NELCO 506.95 10 E 000 411 252500 000
09/08/2017 82235 R RINGHAND BROTHERS IN 54,435.30 10 E 000 341 256710 000
09/08/2017 82235 R RINGHAND BROTHERS IN 8,183.30 27 E 000 341 256750 011
09/21/2017 82238 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 515.00 10 E 000 339 253300 000
09/21/2017 82238 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 100 339 253300 000
09/21/2017 62238 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 200 339 253300 000
09/21/2017 82238 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 284.00 10 E 300 339 253300 000
09/21/2017 82238 R ADVANCED DISPOSAL 492.00 10 E 400 339 253300 000
09/21/2017 82239 R AKPOGUMA, ANDREW 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82240 R ALEPH OBJECTS, INC 2,950.00 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/21/2017 82236 R AMERICAN PLAYERS THE 1,147.50 21 E 400 411 122000 749
.09/21/2017 82241 R AT & T 237.12 10 E 000 355 263300 000
09/21/2017 82242 R BADGER SPORTING GOOD 4,186.79 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/21/2017 82242 R BADGER SPORTING GOOD 180.50 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/21/2017 171800104 A  BE PUBLISHING 1,438.40 10 E 200 411 132000 000
09/21/2017 171800105 A  BLU'S FROYO SHOPPE 17.50 50 E 000 411 257000 000
09/21/2017 171800106 A  BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP 2,794.50 10 E 000 310 231500 000
09/21/2017 82243 R BOUC, GEOFFREY 80.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 171800107 A  BUSSE, ERIC 176.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 82244 R BYRD JR, JAMES 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
08/21/2017 82245 R CASCADE ASSET MANAGE 495.29 10 E 000 310 266400 000
09/21/2017 82246 R CENGAGE LEARNING 13,286.65 10 E 000 470 120000 990
09/21/2017 82247 R CESA #4 150.00 10 E 000 342 252500 000
09/21/2017 82248 R CRESSWELL, ANDREW 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82249 R  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CO 228.75 10 E 000 310 252500 000
09/21/2017 82250 R EVANSVILLE REVIEW 633.50 10 E 000 351 232000 000
09/21/2017 82251 R FERRERA, DOMINIC 90.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82252 R FINK, TYLER 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 171800108 A  FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC 1,140.93 10 E 400 411 126000 000
09/21/2017 82253 R GROSS, MARK 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82254 R GUNfER, RICHARD 90.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82255 R HALZEL, LAURIE 4.04 21 E 400 411 162108 785
09/21/2017 82256 R HEID MUSIC CO 382.07 10 E 200 411 125000 000
09/21/2017 82256 R HEID MUSIC CO 451.59 10 E 200 411 125000 000
09/21/2017 82256 R HEID MUSIC CO 128.55 10 E 400 310 125500 000
09/21/2017 171800109 A  HEINEMANN 2,148.39 10 E 100 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800109 A  HEINEMANN 2,605.10 10 E 100 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800110 A  HOWLETT, KRISTIN 79.00 21 E 200 411 240000 744
09/21/2017 82257 R JOHNSON, JESSE 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 82237 R JOHNSON, KATHERINE 1,000.00 10 E 100 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800111 A  KREBSBACH, KERI 45.50 21 E 400 411 125000 754
09/21/2017 171800112 A  LANDMARK SERVICES CO 2,079.52 10 E 000 335 256610 000
09/21/2017 171800112 A  LANDMARK SERVICES CO 456.77 10 E 000 348 253500 000
09/21/2017 82258 R LEWIS, GARY 90.00 10 E 400 191 162121 000
09/21/2017 171800113 A  MACGILL AND CO 243.91 10 E 000 310 214000 000
09/21/2017 82259 R MASON, CRAIG 300.00 10 E 400 310 125500 000
09/21/2017 82260 R MEYERS, JOHN 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 171800114 A  MILLER, DEBORAH 38.39 10 E 000 342 221300 000
09/21/2017 82261 R MOTT, WILLIAM 90.00 10 E 400 181 162121 000
09/21/2017 171800115 A  NASCO 274.10 21 E 200 411 164901 737



CHECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/21/2017 171800115 A  NASCO 1,704.29 10 E 300 411 121000 000
09/21/2017 171800115 A  NASCO 13.20 10 E 300 411 121000 00O
09/21/2017 171800116 A  NICHOLSON, CHRIS 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 82262 R OFFICE DEPOT 96.50 10 E 000 411 120000 915
09/21/2017 82262 R OFFICE DEPOT 79.95 10 E 000 411 120000 915
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 25.02 10 E 200 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 28.40 10 E 200 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 70.95 10 E 200 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 71.82 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 471.30 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 819.73 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 699.54 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 306.50 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 236.75 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800117 A  OFFICE PRO 9.69 10 E 100 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 82263 R PIGGLY WIGGLY 115.99 10 E 000 411 120000 %15
09/21/2017 82263 R PIGGLY WIGGLY 47.51 10 E 000 411 221300 000
09/21/2017 171800118 A  PIPER, TIMOTHY 40.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82264 R  RAPP, BOB 60.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 82265 R RASMUSSEN, ROBERT 171.97 21 E 400 411 125000 754
09/21/2017 82266 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 130.76 10 E 100 411 122110 000
09/21/2017 82266 R REALLY GOOD STUFF 737.90 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/21/2017 171800119 A  REDDERS, DEEJAY 29.15 10 E 000 342 221300 365
09/21/2017 171800120 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 98.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800120 A  RHYME BUSINESS PRODU 98.00 10 E 400 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 82267 R SAN A CARE INC 233.86 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/21/2017 82268 R SCHENCK, ROBERT 96.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 171800121 A  SCHOLASTIC INC 856.68 10 E 100 411 120000 006
09/21/2017 171800122 A  SCHOOL DATEBOOKS INC 678.83 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 171800122 A  SCHOOL DATEBOOKS INC 423.58 10 E 200 411 240000 000
09/21/2017 82269 R SCHOOL HEALTH CORPOR 513.53 10 E 400 411 160000 000
09/21/2017 171800123 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 6,500.00 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/21/2017 171800123 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 673.00 10 E 000 480 266400 000
09/21/2017 171800124 A  SKYWARD 600.50 10 E 000 310 266400 000
09/21/2017 82270 R TAAMALLAH, MOKTAR 60.00 10 E 400 191 162206 000
09/21/2017 171800125 A  TIERNEY BROTHERS INC 2,382.00 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/21/2017 82271 R UPS 39.48 10 E 000 353 263300 000
09/21/2017 171800126 A  VOIGT MUSIC CENTER 256.84 10 E 400 411 125500 000
09/21/2017 82272 R WEST MUSIC 862.34 10 E 100 411 125000 000
09/21/2017 171800127 A  ZBLEWSKI, DOUG 855.00 10 E 000 310 221300 141
09/21/2017 82273 R ZIEGLER, KEN 60.00 10 E 400 191 162210 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 148.83 10 E 000 336 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 5,246.78 10 E 100 336 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 168.91 10 E 100 337 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 151.23 10 E 100 338 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 4,140.36 10 E 200 336 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 272.50 10 E 200 337 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 504.35 10 E 200 338 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 3,689.74 10 E 300 336 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 111.91 10 E 300 337 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 126.91 10 E 300 338 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 18,062.12 10 E 400 336 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M  EVANSVILLE WATER & L 207.29 10 E 400 337 253300 000
09/21/2017 170925 M EVANSVILLE WATER & L 1,115.02 10 E 400 338 253300 000
09/21/2017 100917 M U.S. CELLULAR 261.75 10 E 000 355 263300 000
09/22/2017 82274 R HUNT, RIANNE 22.75 10 E 300 411 240000 000



CHECK CHECK CHE ACCOUNT

DATE NUMBER TYP VENDOR AMOUNT NUMBER

09/22/2017 82277 R KRULL, LINDSAY 42.80 10 E 000 342 252500 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 2.14 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800129 A  MOSHER, KELLY 1.07 10 E 000 342 232111 000
09/22/2017 171800130 A  ROTH, JERRY 45.48 10 E 000 342 252500 000
09/22/2017 171800130 A  ROTH, JERRY 42.80 10 E 000 342 252500 000
09/22/2017 171800130 A  ROTH, JERRY 21.40 10 E 000 342 252500 000
09/22/2017 82275 R SAN A CARE INC 2,909.04 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/22/2017 82275 R SAN A CARE INC 9,083.78 10 E 000 411 253300 000
09/22/2017 171800128 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 6,500.00 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/22/2017 171800128 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 19,725.30 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/22/2017 171800128 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 10,958.50 10 E 000 411 120000 990
09/22/2017 171800128 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 11,271.60 10 E 000 411 266400 000
09/22/2017 171800128 A  SHI INTERNATIONAL CO 17,080.00 10 E 000 411 266400 990
09/22/2017 82276 R SOUTHERN WISCONSIN R 16,844.00 10 E 000 327 253300 990

Totals for checks 671,850.72



FUND SUMMARY

FUND DESCRIPTION BALANCE SHEET REVENUE EXPENSE TOTAL
10 GENERAL FUND 2,341.50 0.00 650,925.04 653,266.54
21 SPEC. REV. TRUST-ACTIVITY FUND 0.00 0.00 1,805.95 1,805.95
27 SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND 7.50 0.00 8,439.86 8,447.36
50 FOOD SERVICE 180.70 0.00 8,150.17 8,330.87

2,529.70 0.00 669,321.02 671,850.72

*** Fund Summary Totals *#**

Kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkk k% End of report *kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkk



sagueyd gH3

LT0T ‘SPO
wwo) Ag uonoe oN "6/ 3d QMuswadpajmowdy adAoidwi| 6
wwo) Aq uoioe oN "8d 1uawaspamouay aAojdwzay pue sjuswusdissy ‘4 ‘20’z ‘2. "8d pue 3si] a1nuisqns| 8
woJ4 |eroway/lessiwsiq ‘€0°T ‘T U01129S ‘9/ 34 ‘}JL1S [BUOSEIS pUR 91n1ISqNS ‘g 1ed
wwo) Aq uopoe oN "JUBWUSISSY JO Ja1a7 D ‘TO’T ‘T UOI109S “g/ "84 ‘}4elS Jejnolun)-euixy pue-0) ‘g ued| 2
wwo) Ag uoroe opN "JuswAojdw3 Jo uoneudisay Jo 310N ‘TO"9 ‘9 UOIIAS ‘19 "8d ‘44els moddns ‘c ued| 9
wuwo) Ag uonoe oN "}§B1S Ul UoPNPaY ‘TO’S ‘S UoIRaS ‘09 "3d ‘Jyeis 1oddng ‘g wed| ¢
wwo) Ag uornoe oN "92404 Ul UOI3dNpPaY J0j sUosedy ‘TO'9 ‘g UoI109S ‘S "8d ‘Heis paliud) ‘z 1ed| v
wwo) Aq uoiyoe oN "meT 0} Ajlwiojuo) ‘gT uo1as ‘6€ "84 ‘seshojdw] ||y ‘T Med| €
wwo) Aq uoioe oN '9s0dund ddueA3LID ‘T ‘v U0I193S ‘G7 "8d ‘seaAojdwT v ‘T Med| ¢

UONDY ON o)EL 0 9onIWo) 'ASul0lY Wol4 sasuey) [euoiewlofu|

SO\ , _ 4 ‘s24npadoud uonen|ens ‘z0°z# ‘c uoilas ‘gs '8d|  yeisuoddns- ¢l usSiaquaziey essauer| T

ON S3A

ajeq |panoiddy pieog 93uey) ayeA 01 # UoI1D9S/uoides/e8ed gHI 1ed gH3 w04 Uo dwenN #
UOI}EdpPUBWILIOIDY
wo) gH 9@9Aojdwz

ONILIIN FILLININOD ‘€ 4390100 INOHd SIDNVHDI A3SOdOHd (gH3) YOOIANVYH FJIA0TdING




EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Employee Handbook Committee Minutes

The Employee Handbook Committee meeting was held, Tuesday, October 3, 2017, at 4:30 pm
in the District Board and Training Center.

Attendance
Members in attendance: Keith Hennig, Brian Benson, Melissa Hammann, Michelle Klopp, and
Jerry Roth. Absent: Thomas Titus.

Appoint Someone to Take the Minutes
Mr. Roth volunteered to take the minutes.

Review
Policy #152 — Employee Handbook, reviewed.

presented suggested Ianguage changes. Dlscuss
approval.

C
D. #4— Part 3, Suppo
E. #5—Part 3, Supj
i !
G

#6 — Partw5, Co-z

Next Meeting Dates
The next meeting dates: Tuesday, January 9, 4:30 pm and Monday, March 5, 4:30 pm.

Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 5:03 pm.

Submitted by Mr. Roth, Member

Approved: , Chair Approved:
Keith Hennig

Pagelof1



Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Janessa Katzenberger
ll: Support Staff
Pg. 58, Section 2, #2.02F

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #:

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

A conference regarding the evaluation report will be held between the support staff member and building principal or district level administrator.
Within five (5) days following the evaluation meeting, the employee may request a second meeting for clarification and/or discussion of any
concerns. A copy signed by the employee and evaluator shall be submitted for filing in the employee’s permanent file by June 1st. No employee
shall be required to sign a blank evaluation form. Support staff are encouraged to respond to the evaluation in writing and this response shall

accompany the evaluation report. ,
See attached

3k 2k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok sk ok ok sk ok sk sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ke sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk k sk skk ok sk ko k

. DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: D’/Ov}’?f,/w

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES __ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: ,Q/r /%MA/

Legal Impact: VR

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15 \/ s

0



From: Janessa Katzenberger

Part 3, Support Staff — Pg. 58, Section 2, 2.02 F — Support Staff
Evaluation Procedures -

Current:

F. - The Administrator conducting the evaluation meeting will notify the employee at least five
(5) days in advance of the meeting time, place and that it is an evaluation conference.
Within five (5) days following the evaluation meeting, the employee may request a second
meeting for clarification and/or discussion of any concerns. A copy signed by the employee
and evaluator shall be submitted for filing in the employee’s permanent file by May 1%. No
employee shall be required to sign a blank evaluation form. Support staff are encouraged to
respond to the evaluation in writing and this response shall accompany the evaluation
report.

Proposed:

F. — A conference regarding the evaluation report will be held between the support staff
member and building principal or district level administrator. Within five (5) days
following the evaluation meeting, the employee may request a second meeting for
clarification and/or discussion of any concerns. A copy signed by the employee and
evaluator shall be submitted for filing in the employee’s permanent file by June 1st. No
employee shall be required to sign a blank evaluation form. Support staff are encouraged
to respond to the evaluation in writing and this response shall accompany the evaluation
report.

W7



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: __Melissa Hammann

Employee Handbook Part: Part 1, All Employees

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 25, Section 4, 4.01, Grievance Purpose

Suggested Revision: How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy
#152, second paragraph, last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer — The Board has adopted a grievance procedure for the orderly
resolution of employee grievances related to discipline, termination, and workplace

-
O Put 10 CY T tToTYSy = o

ateo : 3Ry ; andboek. The exclusive
means of resolving employee grievances shall be through the grievance procedure
adopted by the Board. Any school employee of the District has the right of access to the
grievance procedure.

2k ok 2k 3k 3k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok sk %k ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok sk sk sk sk skeske skosk ks sk ok sk ok sk ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: Q/X’/’7 KH—

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: /p;' ) /A"UJ/\/
Legal Impact: ﬁ\)w \/,

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17




Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Jerry Roth

Employee Handbook Part: Part 1, All Employees

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 39, Section 16, Conformity to Law

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

To Delete Entire Section — Proposed by Lawyer

ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok ok 3k sk ok ok sk sk ok ok sk sk ok ok ok sk ok sk sk ok sk 3k sk sk 3k sk 3k Sk ok 3k ok sk sk ok sk sk sk ksl sk sk sksk ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: 9./57“/'7}//;\_

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: ,C 3

[4 /
Legal Impact: Né"kﬂ_—

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Melissa Hommann

Employee Handbook Part: Part 2 — Certified Staff

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: pg. 48, Section 6, 6.01-Reasons for
Reduction in Force

Suggested Revision:

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer

A. When the judgment of the Board, a full or partial reduction in staff should occur; the
Board agrees to effect such lay-offs at the end of the school year with written
notification by April 30" for lay-offs due to enrollment decline and up to June-5 May
15 for lay-offs due to budget constraints. Such notification shall provide the affected
teacher with the reason(s) for said lay-off.

B. In determining which teachers shall be laid-off, the Board shall may take into

3k sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ke ok ok sk sk ok ok ok ok ok sk ok sk ok ok ok sk 3k sk sk ok sk ok ok ok sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk ok sk sk ks sk ke

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: Q/X’v/7
JChi~

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES____ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: (/Q/ M

Legal Impact: It

6
HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17 ‘3



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Melissa Hammann

Employee Handbook Part: Part 3, Support Staff

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 60, Section 5, 5.01-Reduction in Staff

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer -

A. When in the judgment of the Board, a full or partial reduction in staff should occur;
the Board agrees to attempt to effect such layoffs with thirty (30) days’ notice. Such
notification shall provide the affected employee with the reason(s) for said layoff.

B. In determining which employees shall be laid-off, the Board shall-follow may take
into consideration factors to help guide their decision: ...........

3 sk ok ok ok o ok sk ok ok sk sk sk ok sk % sk sk ok sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok sk sk sk skok sk ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: 9//}37“/’7//,«,_

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: /@ /é/UA(

Legal Impact: N L

vw

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17 ( H b



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Melissa Hammann

Employee Handbook Part: Part 3 — Support Staff

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 61, Section 6, 6.01-Notice of
Resignation of Employment

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer -

6.01—

The District requests a written notice of resignation from support staff members. The
resignation shall be filed with the District Administrator at least fourteen (14) days prior
to the effective date of resignation so as to ensure appropriate time to find a qualified
replacement. The District Administrator has the authority to accept the resignation.

Personal time or other benefit time may not be taken in place of the notice.

3k 3k ok ok sk sk skok sk ok kR skock sk ko sk sk kkock sk kR ckock sk sk ko sk sk skokosk sk sk skokske sk sk ksk sk sk sk kok

' DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: 9//)7// gz
Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: ; /

Legal Impact: M(W

©V



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Jerry Roth

Employee Handbook Part: Part 5 — Co and Extra Curricular Staff

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 73, Section 1, 1.01, C-Letter of
Assignment

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer —
To delete—C -

st s o s ok ook sk s sk ok otk ook e o K ok o ok o R Kok ok o ok o B ok ok ok o R ok ok o sk o ok sk o o
DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY

Form received: 9// 7/ 7.
Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: %r/uﬁ/l/
Legal Impact: M e

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17



Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for.an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Jerry Roth
Employee Handbook Part: Part 6 — Substitute and Seasonal Staff

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 76, Section 1, 1.03-Dismissal/Removal
From Substitute List and pg. 77, 2.02, F-Assighments and Responsibilities

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Proposed by Lawyer —

1.03 — Dismissal/Removal From Substitute List —

All substitutes are casual employees and therefore have no expectation of continued
employment. As-such;-substitutes-may-be-disciplined-er-discharged-forany-reasen
withoutrecourse-to-the grievance-procedure: Substitutes may also be removed from the

substitute call list at the discretion of the District.

2.02 — Assignments and Responsibilities
F. Summer school and seasonal employees are at-will employees and therefore have no

expectation of continued employment. Summerschooland-seasonal-employeesmay-be

3k sk sk ok sk sk ok ok ok ok sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk sk ok sk sk ok sk sk ok 3k ok sk ke sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok skok kok sk ok

' DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: ?‘ /ﬂ/‘7/£f/—~
Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

/
Cost Impact and Amount: /M /Wﬁ

\/ e
Legal Impact: ]\&{J)’V\A




Appendix A Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15
Revised: 6/25/17

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Immediately Upon Board Approval

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation immediately upon approval.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Jerry Roth

Employee Handbook Part: Employee Acknowledgement

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg. 79

Suggested Revision:

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

See attached - Proposed by Lawyer -

3k sk 3k sk sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk sk sk ok sk sk ok ok ok sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok sk ok ok sk

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: 9// ¥/ '7/4/&

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: /é) £ (},UU&/

Legal Impact: (WL,

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 6/26/17



Employee Acknowledgement -

Current —
(To be signed and returned to the District Office)

I hereby acknowledge that it is my responsibility to access the School District of Evansville
Employee Handbook online. My signature below indicates that I agree to read the Handbook. It
is also important to know that additional regulations, policies, and laws are in the District’s
Board Policies. The Employee Handbook and the District’s Board Policies can be located on the
District’s website at www.ecsdnet.org.

The information in this Handbook is subject to change. I understand that changes in District
policies may supersede, modify or eliminate the information summarized in this Handbook. As
the District provides updated policy information, I accept responsibility for reading and abiding
by the changes. Email notification regarding Handbook updates will be sent to all staff. I
understand that this Handbook does not constitute an employment contract and does not confer a
property interest in my future employment and/or further benefits with the District beyond the
term of my current contract (if any). I understand that I have an obligation to inform the District
Office of any changes in my personal information, such as phone number, address, etc. 1 also
accept responsibility for contacting the District Office if I have any questions, concerns or need
further explanation.

New —
(To be signed and returned to the District Office)

I hereby acknowledge that it is my responsibility to access the School District of Evansville
Employee Handbook online. My signature below indicates that I agree to read the Handbook. It
is also important to know that additional regulations, policies, and laws are in the District’s
Board Policies. The Employee Handbook and the District’s Board Policies can be located on the
District’s website at www.ecsdnet.org.

The contents of this Handbook are presented as a matter of information only. The plans,
policies and procedures described are not conditions of employment. The District reserves
the right to modify, revoke, suspend, terminate, or change any or all such plans, policies, or
procedures, in whole or in part, at any time with or without notice. The language which
appears in this Handbook is not intended to create, nor is it to be construed to constitute, a
contract between the District and any one or all of its employees or a guaranty of continued
employment. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Handbook, employment may be
terminated at any time, with or without cause, except as explicitly provided for in any other
pertinent section of this Handbook or individual contract.



Evansville Community School District
Board of Education Goals
2017-2018

The Board will support the implementation of the Continuous System
Improvement Plan to ensure high student achievement and a high quality
workforce.

The Board will support the implementation of the Continuous System
Improvement Plan to foster positive climate and culture.

The Board will support the implementation of the Continuous System
Improvement Plan to optimize communication and community engagement.

The Board will support the implementation of the Continuous System
Improvement Plan to maximize operations and efficient use of infrastructure.

The Board will support the implementation of the Continuous System
Improvement Plan to promote appropriate use of Technology.

Board Approved: 9/28/16



CONTINUOUS SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT (CSl)
SUB-COMMMITTEE’S 2017-2018 GOALS

Climate and Culture and Health and Wellness

To build a sustainable positive school climate through a supportive environment in which staff
model attitudes and value expectations fostered by respect, effective communication, positive
relationships, involvement, and collaborative decision-making.

Communication and Community Engagement
By June of 2018, we will use a tool to send notifications to families that are timely, improve the
effectiveness of our website and create a district brochure to share our story.

Staff and Student Teaching and Learning
The Goal of the Evansville Community School District is to achieve exceptional Literacy growth
for all students by steadily increasing the number of students meeting state proficiency targets
for English Language Arts in Grades 3 through Grade 11, as measured annually by the
respective state assessments.

2016-2020 Grades 3-8 FORWARD EXAM, Grades 9 & 10 ACT ASPIRE, Grades 11 ACT

Growth targets begin with the baseline in 2015-16: 50.2% of Grades 3-11 students reaching
proficiency in English Language Arts.
To meet expectations with continuous improvement results, growth targets increase as follows:

School vear % of increase % Proficient or Advanced Status
2016-17 1% 51.2% Goal met K-8; 9-11 undetermined
2017-18 2% 53.2%
2018-19 3% 56.2%
2019-20 3% 59.2%
Technology

Develop and implement a high quality professional learning plan that provides technology learning
options as a means to support staff in integrating best practices in teaching and learning to develop
student proficiency in utilizing information literacy and technology.

Facilities and Operations
Has joined the CAC for the 2017-2018 school year.

CSI2017 goals10/17/17



2017-2018 Continuous System Improvement Plan - Volunteers

Name Email
Climate and Culture/Health and Wellness - Tom Titus & Janessa Katzenberger
Buttchen, Heather - ~ buttchenh@evansville k12.wi.us
Fritz, Deb . ~  fritzd@evansville.k12.wi.us
Horgen, Katie =~ ‘ horgek@evansville.k12.wius.
Humberg, Chrissy : ‘ o humbergc@evansvme k12.wi.us
Johnson, Katie - o ' o 1ohnsonk@evansvﬂe k12.wi.us
Katzenberger, Janessa o : : 'katzenbergen@evansvme k12 .wi. us
McDaniel, Katie ' e ‘mcdame!k@evansvaiie k12.wi.us
Redders, Deelay ‘ o :reddersd@evansvme ki2.wi.us
Schuett, Catherine o ‘ - Schuettc@evansville.k12 wi.us
Selmer, Rebecka - selmerr@evansville k12.wius -
Simonson, Mark  simonsonm@evansville k12.wi.us
Smith, Renae ~ smithr@evansville.k12.wi.us
Teske, Dana tesked@evansville k12.wius
Titus, Tom - titust@evansville k12.wi.us

Communication and Community Engagement - David Hami!ton, Barb Dbm & Jerry Roth

Buehl, Michelle brewersgirl13@gmail.com
Dorn, Barbara domb@evansville.k12.wi.us
Dalsen, Jenny idalsen@gmail.com

Dorn, Barbara domb@evansville k12.wi.us
Hamilton, David hamiltond@evansville.k12.wi.us
Maves, Michael mavesm@evansville.k12.wi.us
Roth, Jerry rothi@evansville.k12.wi.us
Schmoldt, Terrie schmoldti@evansville.k12.wi.us
Stano, Mark : stanom@evansville.k12.wi.us

Facilities and Operatxons John Rasmussen, Mason Braunschwelg, Steve Swanson, Bnan Cashore &

Steve Shulta : S et e R e .
;Braunschwelg, Mason R »fi“fbmunschwelgm@evansvxlle k12 wu us
'Cashore, Brian I e T R '»‘"i'.cashoreb@evansvulle k12.wi. us
Haakenson, Scott '  sahaakenson@gmail.com
Hansen, Peter ‘ - phansen0943@msn.com L
Larson, Mitch . miarson@westphalec.com f‘i‘.';f‘f-i.; o
Rasmussen, John RN rasmussem@evanswite k12 wius
Rolek, Bridget - T e g :.,;bkrolek@gmall com i

Roth, Jerry  rothj@evansville k12.wi. us e
Shulta, Steve - FR , e .{'shultas@evanswlle k12.wi. us
Swanson, Steve RN b,swansons@evansvﬂle k12. wi. us

Staff and Student Teaching and Learning - Mélissa Hammann, Keith Hennig, Joanie Dobbs, Barb

Dorn, Scott Everson, Janessa Katzenberger, Jason Knott & Mark Schwartz

Beedle, Butch beedled@att.net

Dobbs, Joanie : dobbsj@evansville.k12.wi.us
Dorn, Barbara dornb@evansville.k12.wi.us
Everson, Scott eversons@evansville.k12 wi.us
Ferrell, Leslie ferrelll@evansville.k12.wi.us
Hammann, Melissa hammannm@evansville.k12.wi.us
Maosher, Kelly Page 1

10/17/2017



Hartje, Bill
Hennig, Keith
Katzenberger, Janessa
Knott, Jason
Oakeson, JoMarie
Oswald, Beth
Roth, lerry
Schmoldt, Terrie
Schwartz, Mark
Tedesco, Kim
Teske, Dana

wmhartje@charter.net
hennigk@evansville.k12.wi.us
katzenbergeri@evansville.k12.wi.us
knotti@evansville.k12.wi.us
oakesonj@evansville.k12.wi.us
oswaldb@evansville.k12.wi.us
rothj@evansville.k12.wi.us
schmoldit@evansville.k12.wi.us
schwartzm@evansville.k12.wi.us
ktedesco@gmail.com
tesked@evansville.k12.wi.us

Technology - Eric Busse, Jason Knott & Larry Martin

Busse, Eric
Beyerl, Abby
Firgens, Mandy
Hicks, Griffin
Johnson, Jenn
Knott, lason
Martin, Larry
Mumm, Jo Ann
Roth, Jerry

Mosher, Kelly

bussee@evansville.k12.wi.us
beverla@evansville.k12 .wi.us
firgensm@evansville.k12.wi.us
hicksg@evansville.k12.wi.us
johnsonj@evansville.k12.wi.us
knotti@evansville.k12 wi.us
mariini@evansville.k12.wi.us

mummi@evansville.k12.wi.us

rothi@evansville.k12.wi.us

Page 2

10/17/2017



uoneiqgele) JesA Jo pug Joj 005 LS
3ebpng

‘Buiobuo pue g0z Atenuep
:uonejdwon 104 auljowil ]

paIs}so} suonejoadxe anjeA pue sepniije [SPOW Je)s Ydiym Ul Juswuoliaus sAioddns e ybnoayy sjewifo [ooyos aalisod sjqeure)sns e pling o

yjesy 2JayMm JuswuoliAuS BuljesoBbiaul pue ‘Bununu ‘(njjoadsel SSBU||9M\ PUB yjjesH
[eoisAyd pue |[elusw |[eJano yels Buiseaou| ‘oJes e 2Insus 0} Wes} e se Bupom 0} pajIlwod st 4SO 9yl pue ainynd pue sjewlD
:snoo4 oibajeys aAnoalqo o169jens ‘ealy Ajuold

BuIYEW-UOISIDaP BAIRIOJE[|00 PUB JUSWBA|0AU] ‘sdiysuopelal aA)Isod ‘Uoieolunwwiod aAljoaye ‘joadsal Aq

:[e09) snoo4 o1b6ajens

5

‘Apjqisuodsal peidys e si Buiules)

Jouysid [00Yos

Q10¢-£10T Aunwwo)

19V aJlIASuUeA]

ue|d yuswaroiduw]

snonunuo) Qwoaﬁ

14vdd



"ainssaid poojq ybiy 0} enp suIBIUOD JLI}BWOI] JO XSI Je ale
1E]S U] JjBY JOAO pue ‘sseu)s 0} oNp SUISOUOD Y)eay [elusw Joj XsU Je ale Jjels au) jjey JoAQ "desjs pue ‘uoniinN ‘ybiepyIINg JO sesle sy} ul
SI0IABYS] S}A1SaH] O] ONp sl 1 aJe Je)s 8y} JO Jjey JOAo ‘Hodey Juswssassy U)esH ayebaibby [enuuy 8102-/10Z 8y} 0) Buipioddy :8L0Z-L1L02

JeaA
1Xeu Buiue)s Jeuwo) 1oy ApniS og Ue|d 9y} MOJ[0) 0} SN MOJ[e [|IM B}ep JUBWSSaSSY Y}[esH 8y} Jo uoljesodiooul sy} pue plemio) Buiob espiuiwioo
o|qeule}sns e Buip|ing o} [2o1U0 aiem JeaA siy} sBuiesw Jno Bulnp painddo ey} suoljesionuod ‘|njuied sswijewos ‘pue jssuoy sy -ssaiboid

sulwJalep pue sieob sjgesinsesw 18s 0} Joday Juswssassy Y)esH ojebsiffy [enuuy sy} esn pue es)iwo) SSaU|[oAA S 10UISIP 8y} Yiim
obiow 0} suejd 880D [SD SlewWi|D pUB ainjny ay} ‘Ssaujjom pue yjjesy uo joeduwi JoalIp B Sey Sjewi[d pue ainynd asneseg “juswiainsesul
[eousWINU BUOE| PUE [BUWIOUI SBM BlEp Y} Y0Eeqpas) jjels [njbuluesw pue a|gipaid J09]|09 0} pley payiom ssjiwwod sy} ybnoylly

"JedA sIy} 0] Jeah JSe| Wod) %G/ Inoge Aq

souepus)e aseaioul padiay yoiym ‘Jusag uoiuboosy Jeis JesA Jo pug sy} pesedsid pue psuueld os|e dnoib siy] “JesA ayj Jo pus 8y} Jijun oo}
ss9004d Buiwio)suielq sy} Bullels pue ‘esusnjiul jo aleyds Jno Jo Jno swal ino Buusljy ‘dnolb snooy yoes wolj yoeqpas) sy} Bupmeiney  -aininy
8yl uo snooj 1ng ‘Ised sy} ebpsmouoy "1oadsal pue ANUBIP Yim Joyjo Yyoes jeal] °1S8q 8y} SWNSSyY Jgnop sy} JO 1duUsq Sy} SAIS) “puejsiopun
0] US)SIT "SS820NG 81eIgoje) oM ainsud 0] Bullesw yoes a10jog POMSIASI 8J9M SWIOU JNQ  "edusnjjul Jo a1ayds Ino uiyim sie jey}

abueyo JoJ seapl Jo} pliy) e pue ‘Juswancidull Jo seale 1o} Jayjoue ‘Jlem Buiob sbuly} 1oj punos U0 — SpPUNOI 834Y] Ul JOBqpas) opIim-10LIsIp pue
olyloads Buipjing Jo} seloba)ed Jejiwis uj Ji-}sod yoes pezuobojes sapiwwod sy -Buiping Aq pepo9 J0joo ~ s}i-}sod [ENpIAIpUl UO pazuewwns
aJem pue snowAuoue paulewsal sdnoib snooy asey} Ui paleyieb yoegpes) pue suojuido 8y] "SJUB)SISSE |EUOIEONPS pUB ‘Y80 Y}[eay

‘sJayoes) ‘suejpoIsno ‘SIoxyIom SB2IAJIeS Pooy apnjoul sdnoub jews asay) Jo ssjdwexy "sdnosb uonisod-Je[iwis Yim }JoW SIaquisl 98I0

sopim-lolsiq ¢ Buiping JnoA ul Juswuodiaug uoiisod aiow e pling digy 0} aABYy NOA op seapl JeypA ‘e
epim-101siq ¢ Buipjing JnoA ul sjuswaaoldwi pasu [98) NOA 1ey) SlewiO pUB a4n)nd 0} paje|ol Seale swos ale Jeyph "2
&8pm-1oLasiq ¢Buiping noA ul [jem Buiob Ajjusaind stieypa ‘L

:suonsenb Buimojo} 8y} 0} siemsue Joyieh o} sdnolb
SN20J Jo AJalieA B UM JoW 98}}ILUWO0D 8y} ‘Uoljusjie JNo 8)eljusduod o} seale juepodwl aziseydws o] ‘|eob mau e pue ‘ueld uonoe Jno dojoasp
0] Aem MBU ‘SWIOU MSU ‘Slaquualu 99)JILULIOD MBU ‘SIIeyd MaU apnjoul 0} JeaA SIU} Yolelos Wod) paue)s aajiluwo) |SD a4njnd pue ajewil) ayl

‘eale snooj o1boje]s siy} Jo) Juswanoidwi WoysAs
sSnoNuUNUoD JO 8]9A0 10y-Apnig-0Q-Ue|d oy} o uonajdwod pue ‘Ajljepl ‘joedw ay) SS8sse 0) pash a4 ||IM Jey) se21nos ejep Ayuep| :L1L02-9L02
:d33N/dVO ALILNAAI — SISATVNY V.1vd




el Ul 8buey Jo sisAleuy

:a)eq/ainses|y Buipug

:a)1eq/ainses|y buiuuibag

:pajejdwon sepp Absjens

JI ssujwisia( jey} eled

abueyn oN

L10Z/1L0MSIH IV %S 79

91L02/1L0 S IV %S 19

uonuINnN g

sous|eAsld YSiY % S JO esealou|

L102/10 S IV %G9S

91L02/1L0 MSIH IV %Z'€S

Wbiep pue INgG 2

aousjenald MsiY %E L1 Jo esealoag

L1L0Z/L0 ST IV %9°LS

9102/10 XSId IV %6°29

alnssalid poojg ‘9

sous[eABld YSIY %G9 JO @seaios(

L102/10 XS IV %8

9L02¢/10 ASIH IV %E'LL

Jebng poolg °g

doUdeABId YIS %6CL JO 9sealds(d LLOZ/LOXMSIH IV %L'L) 910¢/L0 MSiH IV %9°0€ asiJexy v
dous[ensld MSIY %/, 6 Ssealou] L102/L0 XS WV %V L2 9L0Z/LOMASIH IV %l LL UjlesH jeuojows ¢
SOUS[BASId ST %1 9| ©Sealdu| L102/10 St IV %€'L9 9102/10 XS IV % 'Sy SsalS ¢
dduseAdld Sy %08 8sea.ou| L102/10 ST WV %6°LY 9L02/LO XSIY IV %6°€EE desis 'L

:ejeq Ul 8buey) Jo sisAjeuy

o) /einsesyy Buipug

:81e( /einsesyy Buluuibag

:deg saluap| 1ey} ejeq

ue|d 8y} JO SsausAdal ay} sulwusiad [IIM Jey L sainses|y ey} Aiusp| :SIDUNOS V.IVA - SISATVNY V.ivd




Hoday Juswssassy
UiesH eyebelbby qso3

sloineyaq Ayyesy
Buiepow Aq sApenul
SSoujjem 8y} Ul 9]0l
a|qIsIA ‘eAnoe ue Agid 0]
S|oA9] ||e ] SJepes| )SY' g

Hodey Juswissassy
UyeeH e)ebalbby gsO3

(eoueleq ajiI-iom "68)
sojA1say| Ayyesy suoddns
1ey} ainyno e 18)so4"L

A19ISNOdST™

(S)INOS¥3d

q 3I0M 8y} [[IM USUYAA

éparejdwon

31vd dN3

¢ paejdwos si

dsjs sy} usym mou NoA |jim MOH
¢PSJ09||00 2] [|im Blep JeUA
AJOLVIIANI/ZINSVYAN

&,9)E] wea} Jnok
pue noA [im sdels Jeypa
d3lS NOILOV

I

‘eye ui1 ebuey) Jo sisAjeuy

:ojeq/ainsespy Buiuuibeg

:9)eq/ainses|y Buluuibeg

18I\ Se [BOD By Ji
sulwIs}ad 1By} seinsesiy

c

'l

:eleq ul abueyn jo sisAjeuy

:eyeQ/einses|y Buiuuibeg

:eje/ainsesiy Buluuibeg

:uonjejusweldwy
ABajens jo Ajjepld
aulwls}e( 1By} sainses




01 %1'LE Wwog yifesy
[EUOT)OWS IO} 9SBIOUT

03 98ueyD € 9JeW 0 pajuBM
Koty J1 ot J1oddns prnom
OLSIp 9] [99] OYM JJBIS
JO Junowe 9y} 9seaIOu] ‘¢

0} JSII Je

JJeIs Yop’ LT WO SHSHU YIS
[euonjoWy 90NpPaY Z

03 3SHL 18 JJe3S %E' 19
TIOJJ STOAJ] SSa1)S 01PaY “|

(eAnoeye sem dajs
uoljo. 8] SMOYS 82USpPIAS SIY) Aym aquosa()
90UBPIAT JO SISAleuy

(e1ep epnjoul) ssausAl}oa)j/ssaib01d Jo 8ouspIAg

(enoge days oq wouy)
HOLVOIANI/ZdNSYIN

“JI9quidAoN Aq paje|dwod 8q o
sde)s ue|d uonoy Bunuswedw) Jayy eleq azAjeuy :Apnys

Hodey Juswssessy
UiesH eyebaibby aSOT

“WNNURUOD

yljesy aaus 8} SSoJoe
S|enpIAIpUIl 0} SuoljUSAISUI
[puuByO-NINW JBLO ¥

Hoday Juswissossy
yeeH aebaibby qso3

‘'swesboud

pue juswabeuew

yjjesy ajowolid

diay 03 101381p BY) Ssoioe
suoidweyos ssaujom

Jo JJiomiau e dojeAs( ‘¢




"0} ‘sBuisoo [00yos ‘sjueAs Buipnjou) Ajjuenbaiy
sebuByD Jey) UoRBWIO)U] JO} BHSGOM BUj}
Uo uo)Ng B 8)B8I0 JO/PUE STjILIE) O} SUOIJEDLIIOU

‘o)isgom
weaj uo uoyng Jo dde ue jo uopejusws|duw| puas o} dde ue jo asn ay} syebusaau| | £10Z 990-"AON
lea, jo Buiuuibeg
e = T e s R ‘] . A >m~._2mmmeo:2$w_n_=oo ma_._«:a:>>30=x =o>=§>>o_._h e - o 5, !
i e e S e L T : %onbn:wv:mu&ow:ouon:_sﬂwuuws; R e . , PR
. FwoaLnoisnivis o | y¥3aval ~dolvolaNy3¥nsSvyaw | dILSNOWOY. | awa
8TO¢ sunr

uonajdwo) 40} dujjawillL

*A101s 1no aipys

0] 24nY20.q 13143SIp D 31034 pUp 3}1sqam ano fo ssauaniraffa ayr anoidwy ‘Ajawiy a.4p 1oyl SaIIUILS O} SUOIIDILJIIOU PUIS 0 [00] D 3Sh [[IM am ‘TOZ fo aunr Ag

|eoo pausdijy ue|d J1391e41S

ue|d Uol1edluUNWWO) dAIsUsyaldwo)
e 1uawsajdw| pue Juswdo|anaqg

sndo4 Jidazenis

*sjuapnjs jjo iof diysuaziaid annisod

aA1193[qQ d1891enS

PUD 22U3[[2IX3 IIWS3PPIV INJIYID 0} SUIZIYI pup ffols 3eS
‘satjiupf ‘syuapnis yum sdiysiaulind dojanap pup abnbua juswasesuy
‘21D2IUNWILLOD [{IM 1214]51@ [00YIS AUNWIWIOD BJjINSUDAT 3Y ]

ealy Aliond

Ayunwwio) pue uoneIUNWWO)

81-1102

juswabebuzg AJlunwwo) pue uoedIUNWWIO)
ue[d judurAorduy snonunuo))

PLASIF [00YS AHUNWWO) 3jjIASueA]

-

ASOE




. L1-810g 40} snooy

m w:._‘ou ul mmm.;wo#. jo tonwm,iwsasw i

ieekjopus

1e9dA JO IIPPIN

wes]

ainyooig o uons|dwon

‘soljlwe} pue Yels ‘syjuepns 1o} 8q o} aoe|d jealb
B JOUISIp N0 e Jey) sBuly) [nuepuom sy Jo
|le ©SBOMOYS O} 1OMISIP aU1 10f 8INyo0iq B 8)eald)

g8L0¢
aunp-yoJep

wea}

s)isgem
8y} eaoidwi 0} pesn aq |[Im Blep AsANng

¢, 010 ‘Buissiw s|
JEBYAA "SOUSHOM MBU JNO JO SSOUBARDSYS BY} UO
uofeuwuojul Jayjeb o) sajjiwey 1oy ASAINS B 8)eal)

810¢ god-uer




“1e9A |00Y2S 0Z-6TOT U1 40 pud ayi Aq paysijdwodde aq jjim suy 98endueq ysijSu3 ut yimous paradiel syl Suiydsead jo [eos ayL
uoajdwo) 104 duljawIL

%C65 %€ 0c-610C

%C95 %€ 61-810C

%C€S %c 81-L10C

paujwJialapun TT-6 ‘8-) 1aW [D0H %C'LS %T £1-910Z
SAI0IS Da3UDApPY 10 1U310iJ01d % aspaiou] JO 9 IDaA Jooyos

:SMOJJOJ SD aspa.dul s196403 YImoub ‘snsaJ JUaLanodLl SNONUIAU0D YIM SUOIID103dX3 193l 01
*suy 3B6pnbBup7 ysiybu3z ut Aauainifosd Buiynaa spuapnis TT- Sapvdo o %z 0S :9T-ST0Z Ul duljasbq ayy ym uibaq s}ab.in) Yymolao

10V TT 9peJo ‘JHIdSY 10V 0T 8 6 S°pedD ‘INVXI QHVYMYOL 8-€ S9peID 0Z0T - 9T0T
"SIUBLISSISSD JID]S aAlradsal ayy Aq Ajjponuup painspaw sp ‘TT appJo ybnoayl g sapJo ul s}y abonbuo ysybug Jof s1ab.ioy Aouaiorfoid aipis buryaaw
spuapnis fo saquinu ayy Buispalaul Ajippais Aq syuapnis jio Jof yimolb AopiayiT [puojadadxa aAalyon 01 SI 12143sId [00YIS Ayunuwiuwio) ajjiAsuba3 a3y} Jo [poD ay L
|eon pausi|y ueid J18a1e41S

Juawuodinua [pqofo Ainjua)
1sIZ P Ul p2322ns/a}adwiod 03 spuapnys aipndaid o} sa1banays
Pasnq-yapasad ‘anjipaouul asn oym ffols anijaffa

(v13) s1y @8en8ue ysijsu3

siuapnis IV A1ybiy Aq paJtanijap wininaLiIng JUPA3[al pup snodobL
JOJ JUDWdARIYDY Adesaui 13 1usid1jodd D apinoad [jIM 1311351 [00YIS AUNUWIWIO) 3[[INSUDAT Y L Aoeusonr
snoo4 21891k41S aA3[qO d1893e43S eaay Aluond

8I-L10C v 121ISId [00YdS Alunwiwo) 3jjInsueny
sopIWwIwon

Bujuiea] pue Buiyoes ] jJuspnig pue jels Qw O Jﬂ !

ue[J yuduwAoxdwy snonunuo)




UIM [[81104 81SeT]
‘sqgoq elueop

oplaoid pue WOOISSE|D JIBY} Ul SS900NS LM
selBojeus sy} Buisn sieyoes) Jo UoleAlesqO ‘L

lle Jo} sasodind pue sadA} 1xa] ssaippe
0} swy} Bujuies) jeuoissajold opin0ld L

y3aaval

WNOr TOOHOS FTAdIiN YNNIMOW Or | L1/60
Jewwels) pue ApnisS pIOpA ‘G-M
Apmig Jo syun Bugupp pue Buipesy ey}
40 uoneuswadwi 8y} Ul ASUSISISUOD
pIIng 0} Jejs 377 Uiim uoleynsuo)  “y
Jewwels) pue Apnis
sBupesw wouy sejou pue sepuaby § PJOAA UO paseq Bulules] [euoissayold ¢
sdi|s 11x@ ‘sepuabe Buiuieo| [euoissajold ¢ Apns jo suun Bunuaa pue
sieyoes} ||e ejep ybnoaypjiem Buipeay jo ucpejuswadwi panupuo) g
‘wes | diysispes ‘sdys uxe ‘sepusbe buiuies| |euoIssajold  Z Apnis
*Z11107 uLg ejep ybnoaypjjem 10 sjuun Bunupp pue Buipeay ay) uo
LUOJ} UOIIE}NSUO0D ‘sdijs }xe ‘sepusbe Buiuies] [euoisssjold L peseq bujules| [eucissajoid anuuony "L
/M uioQ gleg TOOHOS
SIHL ALVIAIWYTLINI NOSNIFOY 3H0d03HL | 21/60
seweb pue Aug Bulljeds azipn ¥
uononsul AlejnqesoA/SpIOAA
Aouenbai4 ybiH eseasou] g
yoeqpesy pue uopedioped yelg  p SeliAfoe
jplowyss yoeqpesy pue uojediopled yels ‘¢ [moqusi4 Bulyoes) jopowl 8y} enuguod g
oule] ‘Zju4 ¥oeqgpas} pue uojedpiped yels ‘g2 Buipeay uj Apnis jo spun uo
gaq ‘uosuyor aney| yoeqpesj pue uopedpiued yelg (L paseq bujuies| jeuoissajold snuguod L
‘wes] diysiepes 3711 TOOHOS AYV.LINIANTTI QHVNOITIATT
‘7)u07 uug
wioJ} UoIe}NSuod
/M 1JB]S 92UN0SaY swea ] diysiepea Buiping sy} yim "JUSLUDASIYOE JUapn]s
paJeys Sem Udlum Blep JUSLISSaSSe Juapnis ay) uodn pue uoponssui Aoeua Ul JuswaAosdull [0OYdS
paseq padojeAap usaq eAeY Sue|d UOROY |00YdS Y] Joj uejd uopoe ue padojaasp sey jooyos yoe3 | /1/60
Buiuies; qyvy ‘sjuswyedsap
snoo} yum Aoelay Aeuydiosiq Z1-6
Aoelay
*Aoeley] ul Adusioyoud yoeas |y Aseujidiosig pue BuiLpA ul Apnig 1o syun §-9
-¢ sepeib ul sjuapnys 8y} JO %Z"eS U il 81-/10Z Buunp
slopes] |NjSS800NS 8 0} PaJapISUOD aq ||Im Ue|d Aoetsl] ey doysyiopn
Aoeley jooyos slopeay pue Buipeay ui Apnig jo syuUn G-¢
pue sjedioulld
‘uoponnsuj ‘Aoeusyi7 uy Apeau soeed pue 8bojjoo doys>Hopp
Q WNNOLUNY | a4e oym sieajos welqo.d oibsjeis ‘Juspusdapul ejestn) SISHIAN pue Buiuaa ul Apn)S 1o spun Z2-M
10 40308410 :uejd Aoelay ayi Jo [eob ay |
L1/60
Jeaj jo BujuuiBag
) Luaym Ag «.:ﬁmawozw\wuo_mc_oo s1 days oy uaym }ocx nok-jlim moH .
o : ) o ’ - ¢pazfjeue pue P2309][02 9 [iM BJep JeyM . Bt § S
~FINOOLNO/SNLYILS HO1VIIaNI/FdNSYIN. - d348 NOILOV Cooof 31iva




61-81.0¢ 10} snoo

'8T0TZ 4oqwia1das ul TT - € SOPeID) 104 9|ge[IBAR 3 [|IM BIRP JUSWISSISSE JUapN1S [euld

81-L10Z U1 SS81B01d 30 Hodoy Arewwing

1eaj Jo pug |

Jeax Jo s|ppIN

sisyoea) paujel}
avvy ‘sieyoes)

‘uolssnoasip pue ‘Buipum ‘Buipes.
Juspnys aAoidwi 0} snoo} 8yl aq ||im seonoeld
Aisaljsp pue ‘uononuisul ‘Bujuueld jusisisuon
'ss990.d uonejuswa|dw) vy @43 Jo ued se
Jeah ayy ;noybnouy) sbujutes; Qyyy Jeysalel

*Bulutes) sAisuajul Buiaieoal siayoes)
40 dnoub 2109 yum Buiuiesy (Qvvy)
sou|diosiq ssosoy diysaeonuaiddy

lle ‘Nouy| uoser'| | oM} aAey |Im pue ‘AJyjuow oW |Im Siayoea] | Buipeay eAlsusju; uj obebug  °|
SH3 TTOOHOS HOIH ITNASNVAT | L1/60

leaA

Jjooyos ay} Buunp sanunpoddo Bujuies)

Jeuoissajoid ypm Bunuap ul Apmis
Bunum up Aousioyosd uepnys panoidw] ¢ 10 syun o uonejuswsidw snuuo) ‘g

|ediouud 8y} 0} SUOIBAISSCO 8SaU} JO SIUSPIAS s|iMs Buua)si Juspnys

sioyoes} sPy apIAocId puB WOOISSEID JIBY} Ul SS899NS YIM Buiroidwi uodn snooy sy} asealoul
obenbue ysijbug soibajens ay) Buisn siayoes) Jo uogeAlasqO g 0} awy} Bujwiea| jeuolssajold apinold g

‘nes jje

fedioupd ayy 0} sUOHEAISSJO 9S8Y} JO 8IUDPIAS

seale JUsjuUod




8107 Aely :uopejdwio) 1of suljpwit]

‘syuapnis Joj Juawdoanap |s

Ain1ua) 15T SsaJppe 1.yl SUOSSa] WOOISSE]D 01Ul uonesSaiul ABojouyoa) 104 J4e1s 104 ‘Yels Ag seiuniioddo Sujuiea) jruoissajod apincid :Z'T aNIRIg0 e

"JUaWIDABIYOR JUapNMs pue ‘Sujuled] ‘Suiyoesy

anoidwyi 1eyl seiSojouydal mau Joj Loddns pue ‘Bululell ‘SBIN0SAI INOCE UOIIEWIOJUL 53238 01 JJB1S 40} senjunuoddo sidijnw udisaq :T'T aMIIR[g0 e
‘ASojouyas) pue Adesall) uonewojul Buiziin ul Asusidyyosd Juspnis dojansp 03 Sujuies] pue Suiydeay v sadiyoeld
159q BunesSaul ur yels poddns 03 sueaw e se suopdo Bujusea) ASojouyoal sepiroad jeyy uejd Suiuaes) jeuoissajosd Ayjenb ySiy e yuswajdwi pue dojaaa( :jeon

-A3ojouyosl pue Adeiail uoniewiogul Suzijian
ut Asuspyoad Juspnis dojanap 01 Suiuies)
pue Buiyoesy uj saonoesd 1s9q Suijesdaiul

uj jjels spoddns 1eys saiunuoddo Sujuies)

jeuoissajoid Juawajdwi pue dojoasp o}

'syuapnis Jo) Juswdolanap
1I%S Anjua) 1STZ Sessalppe Jeyl UolIoNIIsul Woosse)d
01 Jaysued] eyl ssipunpoddo Sutuies jeuoissajoud
apIn0id 01 pue JUSWBABIYDE JUspnIs pue ‘Buluies)
‘Buiyoeal snosdwy 1eyl saiSojouyasl mau 1oj poddns
pue ‘Bujuies] ‘S934N0S3J INOCE UOIIBLLIOU| SSDI0E 0] JelS
4o} satpunioddo ajdijnw usisap ‘ABojouydel Jo eale ayl
uf JJeis 4oy ssiyunpoddo Bujuies) jeuoisssyoad dojpasp o)

‘Jels pusia
01 ASojouyda} jo eaue ay} ul sspnunpoddo Sujuies)
jeuoissajoud pappaqua-qol Aljenb ySiy Suipinoid

sndo04 J18a3eas aanoalqo J18aiens ealy AjioLd
~ 8I-L10¢ LI1S1g jooyas Alunwwio) JfjIASUeA
ASopouyaa, PHISI] jooyds Al J 9l 3

‘ueld yuawasoxduwy
snonupuo))

ASOTH




9/26/2017

School Board
Roles & Responsibilities

/ASB

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS October 23, 2017

Presentation to the
Evansville School District
School Board and District Leadership Team

WASB Associate Executive Director

) Staff Counsel
bbutler@wasb.org

1-877-705-4422 (phone)

’&* 1-608-512-1703 (direct phone)
wicom \N 1-608-257-8386 (fax)

WASB\ By: Robert Butler
-

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS




School Board
Role & Responsibilities

» Roles of the board, » Board Action vs. the

individual members Individual Board
and administrators. Member

» How do Boards » Access to
exercise these Information
statutory powers and ), Conflicts of interest
duties? » Public records.

» What do Boards do? , | jability and risk

management.

Role and Responsibilities
of Board Members

’

9/26/2017 -~



and federal law.
o Laws define what must be done.

practices.

boards in other districts?

o Laws identify what gets decided locally.

» Education research informs boards and
administrators regarding most effective

School Board Roles and
Responsibilities

» School Board and District Administrator roles
and responsibilities are determined by state

o How are boards in high achieving districts different than

Federal Law
Constitution | A= . A

Statutes )
Regulations -
Court Decisions

The Layers of School Law

School District Level

School District
Policies

~ School District
- Contracts.

State Law
Constitution
Statutes

Regulations

~Court
Decisions

9/26/2017



School Board Duties and Powers

» §120.12 of the state statutes enumerates a list of specific duties of a
school board.

» §120.13 of the state statutes enumerates a list of specific powers of a
school board.

» §120.10 of the state statutes enumerates a list of specific powers of
an annual meeting (which, for unified school districts, are powers of
the school board). ‘

» §120.44(2) of the state statutes gives unified school districts the
powers and duties of the common school board and annual meeting.

» Other statutes (particularly in chapters 118, 120, and 121) create other
_powers and duties.

Board Powers & Duties

» The school board of a common or union high school district may
do all things reasonable to promote the cause of education,
including establishing, providing and improving school
district programs, functions and activities for the benefit of
pupils, and including all of the following . . .

o Wisconsin Statute 120.13
o See “WASB's December 1996 Legail Note “The New Era of
Expanded Powers and Duties for Wisconsin School Boards”

=
TN

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

[

9/26/2017 ~



Board Powers & Duties

» There are 45 enumerated statutory school board powers including:
> Suspension and expulsion of pupils.

> Purchasing or otherwise acquiring necessary books and
equipment.

o Granting the temporary use of school grounds and buildings.

= Selling property.

= Soliciting and obtaining options to purchase real property and,
upon approval of the annual or special meeting, exercise that

option.

Wisconsin Statute §120.13

SCHOQL BOARDS

Board Powers & Duties

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

» The school board of a common or
union high school district shall:

o Subject to the authority vested in the
annual meeting and to the authority
and possession specifically given to
other school district officers, have the
possession, care, control and
management of the property and
affairs of the school district.
Wisconsin Statute §120.12

9/26/2017



2

9/26/2017

Board Powers & Duties

» Common school districts shall
hold an annual meeting at which
electors of district can, among 14
other things, authorize the school L
board to purchase, build or lease
suitable sites and buildings for

school purposes. See Wisconsin
Statute §120.08 and Wisconsin Statute

§120.10

» See also WASB's Guide to Annual School District
Meeting

SCHOOLBOARDS

“Enumerated Powers” versus “Broad
Powers”

» “The school board of a common or union high school district shall, subject to the
authority vested in the annual meeting and to the authority and possession
specifically given to other school district officers, have the possession, care,
control and management of the property and affairs of the school district.”
(§120.12(1))

» “The school board of a common or union high school district may do all things
reasonable to promote the cause of education, including establishing, providing
and improving school district programs, functions and activities for the benefit of
pupils.” (§120.13)

» “Aunified school district is a body corporate with the power to sue and be sued, to
levy and collect taxes, to acquire, hold and dispose of property and to do all other
things reasonable for the performance of its functions in operating a system of
public education.” (§120.44(1))

See “WASB’s December 1996 Legal Note “The New Era of Expanded Powers and
Duties for Wisconsin School Boards”




“Broad powers” imply the power to delegate many
(but not all) powers and duties

» Delegation can occur through policy, through specific board
action/authorization, and sometimes the delegation of authority is
implied through practices.

» Some non-delegable acts are of obvious significance (e.g., adopting
and amending the budget, approving questions to submit to referendum,
employment and dismissal of teachers and administrators, etc.)

» Some arguably non-delegable acts don’t seem all that significant in
light of other responsibilities that can be delegated (e.g., a statute
provides that each school board shall adopt written policies that include
procedures for the storage of pupil medications).

Board Roles:

How Do Boards Exercise
These Statutory Powers And
Duties?

And

What Do Boards Do? <=2

WISCONSIN
ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

9/26/2017



Board Job Description

» The job description is derived from:
o Federal law.
o State law.
o Local School District Policy.
o Education research.

» How are boards in high achieving
districts different than boards in other
districts?

Board Job Description

» Provide general oversight for administration and
district.

» Hire and evaluate District Administrator.

» Review board policies and update as needed.

» Adopt a budget and allocate resources consistent with
board priorities and district goals.

» Oversee negotiation and administration of critical
contracts.

» Be advocates for the district in the community and at
the state, federal and other local governments.

» Make strategic decisions.

9/26/2017



The Key Work of School Boards

Relationships

» hitps:/iwasb.org/customized-leadership-services/key-work-of-
school-boards/

NSBA has identified the core skills that effective boards need to
ensure that all students achieve at high levels.

The Key Work of School Boards

» Vision:

= Your vision reflects a mental picture of the most successful schools and
district that you could have, centered on outstanding student achievement.

= Effective school boards establish a clear vision and high expectations for
quality teaching and learning that supports strong student outcomes.

= School boards achieve their vision by:
- developing a strategic plan guided by the vision
- Establishing/approving goals that support the vision

* making budgetary decisions and allocating resources in a manner
that is aligned with the school district's vision and goals

+ Attending to the other elements of the Key Work of School Boards (e.g.,
adopting policies that support and implement the vision/goals and that
establish structural accountability.

» 111District Vision, Mission, Objectives and Goals

» 112 Expectations of the Evansville Community School District

152.1 Board Operation Goals

9/26/2017



Board Roles: Vision
Goal Seting Process

Board goals

Administration
action plan

Board Roles: Vision

Goal Setting Process

Process | ~ Outcome

Goals

9/26/2017

10



The Key Work of School Boards

» Accountability:

> Accountability means measuring and judging how well the district is
putting the vision into practice and making progress on key goals.

> Accountability starts with (12\the adoption of goals and academic and
othﬁr s’;andards, and (2) the assignment of responsibility and
authority.

> Data and other assessments are used as a tool: Success is
acknowledged and rewarded, while any lack of success drives change
and improvement efforts.

» There are preconditions for credible accountability. For example:

- Staff must sufficiently understand the applicable goals, standards, and
measurements (e.g., those that are intended to support and assess
student achievement)—preferably with initial involvement/input.

- Sufficiently relevant and reliable information must be used to hold
Beople accountable (e.g., student performance should be assessed for
oth proficiency and for growth/improvement).

- District resources must be sufficiently aligned with district goals
and with the accountability structures that the
leadership team creates.

The Key Work of School Boards

» Accountability:
> School board accountability means:

- Taking a fair share of responsibility for the present and future of
the school district.

» Verifying that the preconditions for credible accountability are in
place.

+ Modeling the desired behaviors for which the board intends to
hold others accountable (e.g., setting goals for the board itself
that are aligned with district goals, conducting timely evaluations
of the superintendent, seeking and understanding relevant data
to inform decisions, etc.).

« Establishing standards for and evaluating the board’s own
internal operations and performance.

9/26/2017

11



9/26/2017 -

Board Roles: Policy

» Policy is a vehicle through which a school board
exercises its collective authority in order to serve
students and achieve goals.

+ Board policies translate the board’s vision into action.

o Policies should be closely linked to (and sometimes directly
establish) accountability structures and processes.

o The scope and substance of a board’s policies are a reflection
of and contribute to the formation of the board-superintendent
relationship, including embodying an understanding of the
respective roles of the members of the leadership
team.

» Policies are written directives to administration and staff
__establishing parameters within which the district operates.

Board Roles: Policy

» State law directs boards to develop policies to guide and direct the
board, administrators and staff on any number of topics including:
» Grading, promotion and retention, graduation

Public and pupil records

Harassment and bullying

School admission

Student conduct

Staff complaints and grievances

¢ o o o o

» See WASB's Focus, “Policy making: A continuous process,”
WASB Legal Comment “The Legal Significance of School
Board Policies” November 2007

12



Board Roles: Policy

+ What are the Board’s "Policies™?

The ideas that guide the direction of the district. : “f

Statements by which the school board establishes expectations
for itself.

Statements that prescribe, in general terms, the organization and
programs of the school system.

The means through which the board may authorize, require, or
encourage prudent change in the district.

The foundation of accountability for staff, students, and the
school board itself; a framework in which the district operates.

Aform of “local law.”

The “voice of the board” when it’'s not around.

= See the November 2007 WASB Legal Comment,
“The Legal Significance of School Board Policies”

Board Roles: Policy

THE
L PoLICY
PROCESS

9/26/2017

13



Board Roles: Policy

150 Board Powers and Responsibilities

Board Policy Adoption, Review and
Implementation

151

151.1 Access to Board Policies

151.2 Administration in Policy Absence

Board Roles: Policy

» The micro-level process surrounding the board’s vote to adopt, change or
repeal policy

1. Assigning responsibility for identifying a need to change policy and for
prioritizing policy work

2. Assigning responsibility for drafting new policy language

3. Use of board committees prior to presenting a proposed policy to the
board for possible action

4.The collection and distribution of sufficient background information for
subject matter experts, drafters, and board members

5. How many “readings” of a policy prior to adoption? What are the
expectations concerning amending a proposed policy in connection with
_each “reading” of a draft policy?

9/26/2017 *

14



Board Roles: Policy

» Boards decide what » “Administration’s job is

gets done and what to run the district, the

parameters limit what Board'’s job is to make

gets done. sure the district is run
well.”

» Administration decides
who does it and how to
do it.

Board Roles: Policy

» The Policy Resource Guide (PRG) is a Web-based policy tool designed
to assist Wisconsin school boards and administrators in the important
tasks of policy development and implementation.

The purpose of the PRG is to help school districts develop local policies
that meet their own community needs and interests while keeping in
mind general legal considerations.

Sample policies on an ever-growing number of policy topics that will assist
your school board and administration in the process of creating, reviewing,
and updating district policies. Includes a “base pack” of policies to get
you started.

Background information resources, complete with live links to current

statutes and other publications, that will assist school officials in the day-to-

day process of policy implementation, provide policy-makers with a solid

grounding in the policy and legal considerations that are relevant to each

policy topic, and serve as a new source of professional and board
_development resources within the district.

9/26/2017

15



Board Roles

» Community Leadership:

» Through public advocacy and community engagement, school
boards share their concerns and actions with the public.
> School boards engage the community in a continuing
conversation:
+ The board articulates its vision and goals for education, the steps
taken to achieve that vision, and the type and level of support it
needs to achieve those goals.

* The community articulates its values and assessment of the
educational program of the district.
« The board and community should develop a consensus regarding
the district vision, goals and actions.
= School boards work with legislators and know their legislator,
legislation affecting education and the process.

‘ é ‘ Board Roles:
Leadership and Governance|

» Community Leadership

 Through public advocacy and community engagement, school
boards share their concerns and actions with the public.
Community leadership that builds public support is vital to
implement the board’s vision.

o Understand and articulate community core values and beliefs,
using them to guide board decision-making and
communicating them throughout the district so that the guide
day-to-day actions at every level.

o Articulate a vision that focuses the board, administration, staff
and community on maximizing student achievement.

11 - District Vision, Mission, Objectives and Goals

&

9/26/2017

16



é Board Roles:
L - Community Leadership

» Community Leadership can be effectuated through:
o School Board Meetings
o Task Forces
o Community Surveys
o Staff Surveys
o Meeting with Staff
= Meeting with Educational Foundations, Booster Clubs, etc.

= Meeting with other units of government, legislators, agencies,
etc.

2 Meeting with other outside parties

A é Board Roles:

| Community Leadership
» School Board Meetings

* Agenda Structure and Content

* Public Comment Period/Discussion Periods
- Connection to Board Policy

- Connection to Board Goals

- Situation Reports

_ - BoardDocs ® eGovernance Solutions

9/26/2017

17



‘é Board Roles:
Community Leadership

» Special School Board Meetings/Task Forces on
Specific Topics
+ Agenda Structure and Content
- Discussion Periods
- Connection to Board Policy
+ Connection to Board Goals

« Situation Reports

+ BoardDocs ® eGovernance Solutions BoardlDocs

aur Papesiess Govermance Selution

Board Roles:
Community Leadership

» Community Surveys

» A community survey, if properly structured, can help a school
board determine public sentiment regarding specific issues
before proceeding with contemplated courses of action.

However, school boards must resist the temptation to ask open-
ended questions on a community survey. Why?

- Other considerations:
- What'’s the objective of the survey?
- What topics will the survey cover?
» Who is the target group of respondents?
. What will the board do with the results?

9/26/2017 °

18



Board Roles:
Community Leadership

» Community Surveys

- Other considerations:
-Who will create the survey questionnaire?
-Board? Committee? Administration?
-What format will be used?
-Yes/No? Select from the following choices? Etc.

» How will it be delivered?

- Paper distribution? Electronically via website or email?

- How will the results be delivered to the community?

‘é Board Roles:

Community Leadership

» Community Surveys
- Other considerations:

- Note that not all topics are appropriate for community
survey, for example:

- Polling community members about the performance of specific
personnel;

- Surveying the community regarding matters that go beyond
the authority of the board.

_- “Should the official state bird be the .... ?”

9/26/2017

19



é Board Roles:
qg¥ Community Leadership

» Community Surveys

- Appropriate survey topics should relate to the district’s
strategic plan, goals, mission and services, for example:

- Polling community members regarding how the board should
prioritize spending — “Rank in order of importance: Technology,
Staffing, Building & Property Upgrades, Extracurricular Activities,
Curriculum Development & Implementation.”

. Indicate the level to which you agree or disagree with the following
statement: “The board maximizes community opportunities to utilize
the district’s facilities.”

_- Strongly Agree, Agree, No Opinion, Disagree, Strongly Disagree

é - Board Roles:
“, Community Leadership

» Educational Foundations, Parent Teacher Organizations
and Booster Clubs

- Educational foundations are nonprofit organizations
incorporated in the State of Wisconsin and, if properly
structured, provided tax-exempt status under § 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

« |f the organization solicits charitable contributions, it will need to
register with the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions and
may need to file a type of informational tax return with the IRS.

» The income and assets of the foundation must be used exclusively
for the benefit of the public; and

» |f the foundation is ever dissolved, the assets of the foundation must
__be distributed to another entity that is tax-exempt under §501(c)(3).

‘

9/26/2017

20



9/26/2017

; \4 Board Roles:
0’ Community Leadership

» Booster Clubs/Parent Teacher Organizations

» A booster club and educational foundation may differ in several key
areas, however, including, for example:

» Their mission, goals and purpose for existence;

Their methods of fundraising;
¢« How assets are invested;

« Purposes for which funds will be used by the organization
and gifted to the district;

« The size and composition of the board of directors;

The composition of members (volunteers or employees)

‘% Board Roles:
(@¥ Community Leadership

» Booster Clubs/Parent Teacher Organizations:

= Abooster club and educational foundation may differ in several key
areas, however, including, for example:

= Qualifications of members/directors;
¢ Investment strategies; etc.

« More common for school board members to also serve on
the board of a foundation than a booster club.

» The decisions that each type of organization makes with regard to
the aforementioned list of topics must be clearly stated in the
organization’s articles of incorporation and/or bylaws.

21



Board Roles:
Community Leadership

» Public Hearing:

» Some state and federal laws require the school board to hold “public
hearings” or seek other public input prior to taking certain actions or
adopting certain policies. Examples:

. Annual budget hearing. Wisconsin Statute §65.90(4)
. Hearings on borrowing resolutions. Wisconsin Statute §67.05(6a)(a)2.b

. Hearings on school district requests for a waiver of rules or statutory
requirements from DPI. Wisconsin Statute §118.38(1)(b)

. Hearings regarding the establishment of a charter school. Wisconsin
Statutes §§118.40(2) and (2m)

. In some cases, school board policy may specify that the school board
will hold a “public hearing” before the board takes certain actions (e.g.,
__changing school attendance boundaries).

é - Board Roles:
@® Community Leadership

» Public Comment Period:

> Most school boards find that it is important to both allow and limit periods of public
comment at board meetings.

» The law provides a lot of flexibility to school boards in structuring public comment
per{ths., ut boards must be very cautious about content-based and viewpoint-based
restrictions.

- |tis almost always helpful to have (and follow!) a formal board policy regarding
periods of public comment.

> The presiding officer of the meeting must be willing to assert a strong presence,
consistently enforce the “rules,” and exercise patience.

» A public comment period is not the only way, or typically the "best’ way, to (1) obtain
broad input on an important question; or (2) have fact-specific issues/complaints
brought to the District's attention.

» 187 - Public Participation at Board Meetings

v

9/26/2017

22

’



‘ Board Roles:
@

Community Leadership

Public Comment Period:

» A school board has no legal obligation to regularly include a period of
public comment on its meeting agendas.

» When a school board chooses to allow members of the public an
opportunity to address the board at a meeting, the period of public
comment must be included on the meeting notice. See Wisconsin
Statute §19.84(2)

* When a school board receives public comments on topics/issues that
are not otherwise part of the publicly-noticed meeting agenda, it is
permissible for board members to briefly discuss and respond to the

~ issue. However, the school board may not take formal action on any
such topic/issue (i.e., on a subject that is not otherwise identified in the
meeting notice). See Wisconsin Statute § 19.83(2) Wisconsin 2015-
OML-Guide.pdf

‘_‘a Board Roles:
@

» Public Comment Period:

Community Leadership

The meetings at which a period of public comment will be offered (e.g., regular meetings, special
meetings, committee meetings, etc.)

Whether comments can be on any topic/issue, or whether the period of public comment will be confined,
e.g., to noticed agenda topics

The total amount of meeting time that will be allocated to public comment

The placement of the public comment period on the agenda (e.g., at the beginning of the meeting, at the
end of the meeting, etc.)

The length of time each person will be permitted to speak

Pre-comment speaker “registration” requirements
The ability to make exceptions to the “normal” procedures

Other “content-neutral” limitations ge.g., prohibiting rePetitive appearances, and
comments that are obscene, threatening, or that would constitute harassment)

9/26/2017

23



Board Roles:
Relationships

» Receive Data Through Surveys And Meetings With Staff

» Meet and Confer:

» Public sector employers have a long history of “meeting and
conferring” with employees even in the absence of collective
bargaining.

- Even “before states enacted laws mandating or permitting collective
bargaining in the public sector in the 1970s, meet-and-confer was
the primary way for public sector unions to represent their
members’ interests to employers.” (Freeman et al, pg. 9) Public
Sector Unionism without Collective Bargaining, Mr. Richard B. Freeman
and Ms. Eunice S. Han, December, 2012 American Economist
Association Meetings, January 6, 2012, San Diego, CA.

Board Roles:
Relationships

» Receive Data Through Surveys And Meetings With Staff

» Meet and Confer: The key distinctions between the term “meet and
confer” as used in this context and “meet and confer” in the context of
“collective bargaining” are as follows:

o there is no legal requirement to “meet and confer” with the union or
exclusively with the union on matters beyond base wages;

o the “meet and confer” meetings are not covered by the procedural
requirements in Wis. Stats. 111.70(4)(cm) [e.g. initial exchanges of
proposals, mediation, etc.];

> there is no legally binding contract that results from the “meet and confer”
meeting(s); and

» the Board ultimately decides the issues (other than base wages) to put
forward for a “meet and confer” meeting absent other legal constraints, for
example, modifications to a teacher’s individual contract.

‘

9/26/2017

24



Board Roles:
Relationships

» Receive Data Through Surveys And Meetings With Staff

» Meet and Confer:

o If a Board chooses to meet with employees for “meet and confer”
meetings, it is WASB's suggestion that such meetings not be limited
solely to union participants.

° WASB would suggest that the Board could invite union members and
other staff to such meetings without requiring the staff to identify
themselves by any affiliation with the union, any affiliation with any
other representative organization, or an announcement of no
affiliation at all.

< The reason for this suggestion is so that the dialogue steers clear of
any employee concerted activity rights.

Board Roles:
Relationships

» Receive data through surveys and meetings with
Staff

o Employee Opinion Survey — an employee opinion survey
gauges the district employees’ opinions and satisfaction on a range of
issues related to the operation of the district.

o School boards use survey data to guide their work in setting policies,
crafting employee handbooks, building relationships and improving
services.

o If administered annually, a district can track data trends and determine
the impact of employee-related initiatives.

9/26/2017

25



' ‘é Board Roles:
e Relationships

» Staff and Comparable Compensation Surveys

o Review your local staff surveys and comparable

- school district data.

> Solicit both quantitative and qualitative data
through employee surveys and qualitative data by
meeting with employees to review compensation
model components, employee handbook terms,
and working conditions.

@\‘ Board Roles:
‘ Relationships

» Employee Exit Interviews - A proactive means of
communication/feedback:

« Conduct Employee Exit Interviews — exit interviews involve a one-on-one
discussion with departing employees, either in person or by telephone.

o Exit interviews are personal opportunities in which the school district can
thank departing employees for their contributions and wish them well on
their future endeavors.

o Exit interviews also provide an opportunity to discern the honest reason(s)
for an employee's departure which can provide a district with valuable data
upon which to base future staff retention efforts.

9/26/2017

26



‘é Board Roles:
(- Relationships

» Employee EXit Surveys — A proactive means of
communication/feedback:

» Conduct Employee Exit Surveys — Exit surveys, on the other hand,
consist of asking departing employees to fill out either an online or
paper guestionnaire.

= Like exit interviews, exit surveys also provide an opportunity for a district
to discern the honest reason(s) for an employee’s departure, which can
provide a district with valuable data upon which to base future staff
retention efforts.

= The disadvantages of exit surveys are that response rates are typically
lower than response rates for exit interviews, and the data will not be as
rich because the district may not have the opportunity to ask follow-up
questions.

= WASB has Exit Interview and Exit Surveys for Districts

Board Roles:
Relationships

Board-Superintendent Relationships

> Both the school board and the superintendent have essential leadership roles that
are interconnected but different.

A productive board-superintendent-administration-staff relationship requires each to
understand the unique roles and responsibilities of their position.

> In nearly all districts, issues arise that can cause (or should cause) the leadership
team to recalibrate their mutual understandings of their respective roles.

= Shared goals and clear policies can help to define roles and build a strong,
collaborative relationship.

o Actions that erode trust harm the relationship and jeopardize the effectiveness of the
leadership team.

9/26/2017

27



) Board Roles:
oéLeadership and Governance §

» Board/Superintendent Relationships

» Draft policy on District Administrator evaluation;

» Superintendent evaluation rubric;

» Superintendent evaluation standards;

. PowerPoint presentation on Superintendent
evaluations;

» Evaluation work form;
» Sample Job Description; and

» Wisconsin Educator Standards for Administrators.

Board Roles:
Leadership and Governance|

» Board/Superintendent Relationships

k

o Both the school board and the superintendent have
essential leadership roles that are interconnected but
different.

o Effective school boards lead as a united team with the
superintendent, each in their respective roles with
strong collaboration and mutual trust.

224 Board/Adminisirator Relationship
225 Evaluation of the District Administrator

Recruitment and Appointment of District

2 Administrator

232 District Administrator, Job Description

9/26/2017

28



Board Roles

» Relationships:

= Both the school board and the superintendent have
essential leadership roles that are interconnected, but
different.

o The board-administration relationship is critical for district
success.

= A productive board-superintendent-administration-staff
relationship requires each to understand the unique roles
and responsibilities of their respective positions.

@

» Set goals and priorities, assess progress, enforce via
accountability.

‘é " Board Roles:
W eadership and Governance|

» Understand and articulate community core values and
beliefs, using them to guide board decision-making and
communicating them throughout the district so that they
guide day-to-day actions at every level.

» Work on the school board’s internal leadership
development (orientation of new members, self-
assessment, increasing members’ knowledge and skills)

9/26/2017

29



Examples of board roles through a
more legalistic lens...

» “Legislative”
Making policy, determining the budget and the tax levy.

» “Judicial”
Serving as an impartial decision-maker in a “due
process” hearing (finding facts, applying law/policy,
reaching conclusions, issuing orders).

» “Executive”
Serving as an employer
(hiring, evaluating, compensating).

School Board
Annual Self-Evaluation Tool

» Annual Board Self-Evaluation Tool

> The complimentary Annual Board Development Tool
online survey. Created by School Perceptions and the
Wisconsin Association of School Boards (WASB), the
survey is designed to help boards identify their areas of
strength and alignment as well as where further dialogue
and discussion is needed.

9/26/2017

30



Research on Key Works

2009 lowa Lighthouse Study

Effective school boards:

> Believe all students can learn and schools can teach all
students

»Are knowledgeable about teaching and learning issues
»Make student-centered, data-driven decisions
» Create supportive workplace for staff

»Engage communities as collaborative partners to increase
student achievement
WASB\

WISCONSIN & 7

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

More information: http://goo.gl/GJG6tp

9/26/2017

31



2011 Center for Public Education Study:
Eight Characteristics of Effective School Boards

Effective school boards:

» Commit to a vision of high expectations
> Share beliefs and values

» Focus on policies

» Establish collaborative relationships

» Lead as a united team

> Understand and use data

» Align and sustain resources

» Participate in team development and training

More information: hitp://g00.gl/37Sil8

2015 UW Oshkosh/ m
UW Milwaukee Research %

“When school board members who have served for at least
five years indicate greater adherence to the Key Work of
School Boards, student achievement increases.”

> Specifically, greater adherence to the Key Work concepts
has a statistically significant relationship with a district's
reading proficiency levels, and overall accountability
score.

More information: Michael Ford Blog, July 27, 2015

WASB\

WISCONSIN L\ 7

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

9/26/2017

32



Additional Studies and Resources on the Impact of
School Board Governance on Student Achievement

» Center for Public Education Study Eight Characteristics
of Effective School Boards

» How School Board Conflict Impacts Student Outcomes
in the United States; Mike Ford, 2016

Eight Characteristics of
Effective School Boards and Leadership
Teams — CPE Study

» Center for Public Education Study,
January 2011 '

o In the most dramatic examples from this research,
scholars compared districts with similar levels of
poverty and disadvantage to determine factors that
separate high-performing districts from those with
low performance. In many cases, these
differences included the approaches taken by
local school boards.

o CPE Study Eight Characteristics of Effective School

e-BRoards

9/26/2017

33



Eight Characteristics of
Effective School Boards — CPE Study

» So what do these boards do? Here are
some examples:
» Boards in high-achieving districts are more likely to

engage in goal setting and monitoring their
progress.

o CPE Study Eight Characteristics of Effective School

Boards

Eight Characteristics of
Effective School Boards — CPE Study

» So what do these boards
do? Here are some
examples:
> They are increasingly data savvy

— identifying student needs and
justifying decisions based on data.

o CPE Study Eight Characteristics of
Effective School Boards

9/26/2017

34



Eight Characteristics of
Effective School Boards — CPE Study

» So what do these boards do? Here are some
examples:

o Board members possess detailed knowledge of
their district, including initiatives to jump-start
success.

> Board members have crafted a working
relationship with superintendents, teachers, and
administrators based on mutual respect,
collegiality and a joint commitment to student
success.

» CPE Study Eight Characteristics of Effective School Boards

Additional Studies on the Impact of School
Board Governance on Student Achievement

» The Impact of School Board Governance on Student Achievement,
Mike Ford, 2013, University of Wisconsin- Milwaukee: Find it here.

» Ford, M. & lhrke, D. (2015). Do School Board Governance Best
Practices Improve District Performance? Testing the Key Work of
School Boards in Wisconsin. International Journal of Public
Administration, DOI: 10.1080/01900692.2014.982293 Michael
Ford Blog, July 27, 2015

9/26/2017

35



Board Action vs. the
individual Board Member

Individual Board Member Powers

» Board members have very few statutory powers to exercise as
individuals.

» Many of the duties that individual board members have are duties to
refrain from certain conduct.

» The board officers have statutory powers and duties specific to their
individual office.

» Board members may also have specific powers that are listed in
Board Policy.

161 Board Member Authority

163 Opportunities for Development
165 School Board Conduct/Ethics
Board Member Access to Information

166

¥

9/26/2017

36



v v

v

Individual Board Member Duties

Attend school board meetings.
Be prepared to discuss and act on meeting agenda items.

Be informed about meeting agenda items and educational issues in
general.

Participate when board exercises its duties:
> General oversight.

> Hire and evaluate District Administrator.

= Adopt policies

= Adopt a budget.

s Qversee contracts.

> Advocate for education.

- Make strategic decisions.

Board members may also have specific powers that are listed in Board
Policy.

Individual Board Member Powers

» What is the single most important
power that an individual board
member has?

9/26/2017

37



Scenarios in which Some Boards/Districts
Have Struggled with “Role Definition”

» Flow of Communication/Information Among the District’s
Leadership Team

v

Requests / Directives to Staff

v

Establishing Meeting Agendas

v

Visiting School Buildings / Classes

k4

Attending Meetings

v

Speaking on Behalf of the District

» Handling Complaints and Concerns (e.g., a personnel
concern

Board Officers: Sources of Authority

> Wisconsin statutes outline the basic duties of
school board officers. See, e.g., Wisconsin Statute
§ 120.15 - 120.17 (e.g., “School district president;
duties”). NOTE: Many other statutes come into

play.

» Board policy can assign additional responsibilities
and provide additional guidance to the board'’s
officers, but policy cannot conflict with the statutes
(i.e., district policy cannot be used to completely
“opt out” of mandatory legal duties).

9/26/2017

38



Examples of Duties/Powers of the President

» Serve as the chairperson (presiding officer) of board meetings
» Issue proper notice of school board meetings (opeﬁ meetings) -

» Ensure that minutes for each meeting are recorded, approved, and
signed

» As presiding officer, direct the process for convening in closed session
» Countersign checks for disbursement of funds
» Defend/prosecute actions brought by/against the school district

» Serve as the school district representative to the joint review board for a
municipal tax incremental district (TID)

» License revocation reporting to DPI when district administrator conduct
is involved Wisconsin Statue §120.15

Examples of Duties/Powers of the VP

» In the absence of the president, acts as chairperson
of school board meetings. Wisconsin Statute

120.15(5

» In the absence or disability of the president,
discharges all the president’s other duties until the
disability or absence no longer exists. Wisconsin
Statute §120.05(3)

» The above do not mean that the vice president
necessarily fills a vacancy in the presidency.

9/26/2017

39



-

9/26/2017

Examples of Duties/Powers of the Clerk

» File a timely verified “annual school district report” with the
Department of Public Instruction

» Annually, by September 15, files a financial audit statement with
the state superintendent.

» Alarge number of duties related to elections (see the WASB
Elections Schedule, published annually)

» Record the minutes of school board meetings and the
proceedings of annual meetings; keep the official records of the
board

» Involved in the filing of requests for special meetings
» Serves as the filing officer for various petitions and notices that

the district/board may receive; responsible for issuing/publishing
various notices Wisconsin Statute §120.17

Examples of Duties/Powers of the Clerk
(continued)

» Annually on or before November 10, certifies the school district tax levy
to the clerk of each municipality having territory within the school district.

» Files referendum questions with county/municipal clerks
» Certifies referendum results to DPI
» Furnishes copies of individual teacher contracts to teachers

» Receives payment vouchers filed with the district; draws orders on the
school district treasurer as directed by an annual or special district
meeting or by the school board and records all orders drawn on the
school district treasurer.

» Signs checks and other disbursements from the school district's
accounts. Wisconsin Statute §120.17

40



Examples of Duties/Powers of the Treasurer

» Applies for, receives, and sues for all money appropriated
to or collected for the school district and disburses the
same in accordance with section 66.0607 and section
120.16(2) of the Wisconsin statutes.

» Immediately upon receipt, deposits the funds of the school
district in the name of the school district in a public
depository account designated by the school board under
section 120.12(7).

» Enters in the treasurer’s account books all money received
and disbursed by the treasurer, specifying the source from
which it was received, the person to whom it was paid, and

the object for which it was paid. Wisconsin Statue §120.16

Examples of Duties/Powers of the Treasurer

» Ensures district monies are maintained in segregated funds
to the extent required by law or by the DPI accounting
requirements.

» Withdraws funds of the school district deposited in savings
or time deposits by written transfer order.

» Presents to the annual meeting a written statement of all
money received and disbursed by the treasurer during the
preceding year.

» Wisconsin Statute §120.16

9/26/2017

41



Delegation of officer duties to a

non-board member
» General Rule:

Officers may not delegate discretionary duties of their office to non-
board members except as otherwise expressly provided by law.

Officers may delegate ministerial and administrative duties to non-
board members (e.g., the clerk may delegate the duty of receiving
declarations of candidacy and other election documents to the school
district administrator).

A number of officer duties would likely be deemed “ministerial” or
“administrative,” but there is no clear line that can be relied upon.

» Delegation Of Actual Responsibility Does Not
Necessarily Transfer Legal Responsibility

+ Please see WASB Legal Comments, October 2012 and March 2007
(nitos:/www.wasb.org/; under “Services & Resources” drop-down menu; clict ';WASB\
‘Legal & Human Resources Services > School Law Resources >
in the top box, choose Legal Comments)

Officers Unable to Perform Duties

120.05 School board officials. (3) If the school district
president, vice president, treasurer or clerk of any school
board is unable to discharge the duties of the office due
to disability or absence, the school board may appoint a
person to discharge the duties of such person until the
disability or absence no longer exists. In the case of a
3-member school board, the appointee shall be an
elector of the school district. Wisconsin Statute §120.05

WASB\

‘WISCONSIN kk

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

9/26/2017

42



Officers Unable to Perform Duties

» 120.05 School board officials. (3) (continued) In the
case of a larger school board the appointee for the
president shall be the vice president and the appointee
for the other officers shall be another school board
member. The school board shall determine the
compensation of such appointees. A person acting as
school district clerk or school district treasurer shall have
the powers of a deputy and shall take and file an official
bond covering the person’s acts unless the bond of such
officer includes a bond for the officer’'s deputy. Wisconsin
Statute §120.05

Board Member Access to
Information

9/26/2017

43



¢

9/26/2017

General — Board Member Access to
Confidential Information

» Individual school board members possess all the
rights granted to them by applicable state law,
federal law and Board policies.

» Individual board members may request and obtain
statistics and reports, etc.:
> as directed by the Board,
o as required by their office (i.e. President, Clerk or
Treasurer),
o as available as a parent/guardian, or
> as available pursuant to a public records or directory data
request.

General — Board Member Access to
Confidential Information

» Wisconsin Statutes
Sections 19.21 — 19.39 [Public Records Law and related statutes]

-

» Section 19.65 [rules of conduct; employee training; and
security regarding personally-identifiable
information]

» Section 48.396 [law enforcement officer records]

» Section 115.812(2) [reporting information regarding specified
students with disabilities to appropriate county
departments]

» Section 118.125 [state student records law; policies required]

» Section 118.126 [privileged communications related to student
alcohol and drug use]

» Section 118.127 [law enforcement agency record information]

44



>

General — Board Member Access to

Confidential Information
Wisconsin Statutes

Section 118.51(8)
Section 118.52(10)
Section 120.13(28)

Section 146.82
Section 146.83
Section 252.15

Section 767.41(7)

Section 938.396

Section 950.08(2w)

[full-time open enroliment; disciplinary records]
[course options; disciplinary records]

[board authority to designate legal custodians)
[confidentiality of patient health care records]
[access to patient health care records]

[access to HIV test results]

[custody and physical placement; parent
access to records]

[access to records; law enforcement and court
records]

[information provided by district attorney to
schools in criminal cases]

»

¥

b

General — Board Member Access to

Confidential Information

Federal Laws

» Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act [federal student records

34 C.F.R. part 99

34 C.F.R. part 300

law]

[U.S. Department of Education FERPA
Regulations]

[U.S. Department of Education IDEA

regulations; confidentiality and maintenance of
records]

Elementary and Secondary Education Act (20 U.S.C. § 7908)

[military access to student information]

National School Lunch Program [heightened privacy rules for

students’ eligibility status and other NSLP

records]

9/26/2017

45



Conflict of Interest

Conflict of Interest

Overview
Code of ethics for public officials. Wisconsin Statute §§19.41-59

Criminal liability under Wisconsin Statute §946.12 (misconduct in
public office) and Wisconsin Statute §946.13 (private interest in
public contracts) of the Wisconsin statutes.

Doctrine of incompatible offices. Some exceptions for volunteer
positions.

“Common law” conflicts of interest.

Bias and patrtiality.

9/26/2017

46



Conflict of Interest

Code of Ethics for Public Officials

» No local public official may use his or her public
position or office to obtain financial gain or
anything of substantial value for the private
benefit of himself or herself or his or her
immediate family, or for an organization with
which he or she is associated. Wisconsin
Statute §19.59

Conflict of Interest

Code of Ethics for Public Officials

» No local public official may solicit or accept from
any person, directly or indirectly, anything of
value if it could reasonably be expected to
influence the local public official's vote, official
actions or judgment, or could reasonably be
considered as a reward for any official action or
inaction on the part of the local public official.
Wisconsin Statute §19.59

9/26/2017

47



Conflict of Interest

Code of Ethics for Public Officials

» No local public official . . .may ... give ...or
withhold . . . his or her vote or influence . . . upon
condition that, any other person make or refrain
from making a political contribution, or provide
or refrain from providing any service or other
thing of value, to or for the benefit of a
candidate, a political party, . . . . Wisconsin
Statute §19.59

Conflict of Interest

s

Criminal Liability (Wisconsin Statute §946.13)
» General Rule: A board member may not have a
private pecuniary interest in contracts with the school
district if those contracts involve receipts and
disbursements of more than $15,000 in any year.
Violation of this requirement constitutes a felony.
o A “strict liability” statute

o This statute can be violated either in an individual capacity
or in a board member’s public capacity.

o Abstention from all board discussion/action on a contract

_does NOT necessarily cure this kind of conflict of interest.

0/26/2017

48



9/26/2017

Conflict of Interest
Criminal Liability (Wisconsin Statute §946.12)

» Misconduct In Office: Several different provisions, including:
= Taking certain actions in an official capacity with an intent to obtain
a dishonest advantage.
o Intentionally falsifying certain records in a “material respect.”
* Intentionally doing an act one knows is in excess of one’s lawful
authority.
» Intentionally soliciting or accepting anything of value for the

performance of any service or duty that is other than the value that
has been fixed by law.

Conflict of Interest

Incompatible Offices

» Doctrine of incompatible offices involves two
governmental offices or positions.

» A board member may not hold multiple
offices/positions if they impose conflicting duties
upon the board member or if there are many
conflicts of interest between the two
offices/positions.

° e.g., board member and employee

49



School board members as volunteer coaches and
activity supervisors (2015 Wisconsin Act 92)

A school board member is able to serve as a volunteer coach or volunteer
supervisor of an extracurricular activity under the following conditions:

1. The board member must not receive compensation for serving as a
volunteer coach or supervisor; .

2. The board member must agree to abstain from voting on any issue that
comes before the school board that substantially and directly concerns the
activity that he or she coaches or supervises while he or she is serving as a
volunteer coach or supervisor; and

3. The school board must receive the results of a criminal background
investigation of the school board member that has been conducted by the
department of justice or the federal bureau of investigation.

A board member who is serving as a volunteer coach or volunteer activity
supervisor is not required to abstain from voting on the school district’s annual
budget in order to remain in compliance with the second condition listed above.

Conflict of Interest

Resources

» Please see WASB Legal Comments
(https://www.wasb.org/; under “Services & Resources” drop-down menu;
click on “Legal & Human Resources Services > School Law Resources >
in the top box, choose Legal Comments).

WASB Legal Comments: May 2013, Nov. 2013,
March 2008, April 2007, July 2003.

WASB\

WISCONSIN Q\ il

ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BOARDS

i

9/26/2017

50



Liability and Risk
Management

Liability and Risk Management:
Sources of Liability

State Law:

- “Torts” (breach of a duty of care)
- Contract claims

- Statutory/regulatory claims

- Worker's compensation

- Unemployment benefits

. State constitutional claims

Federal Law:

- Statutory/regulatory claims
- Private claims/suits
- Direct federal enforcement

- Examples: IDEA; Sec. 504;
employment; Title IX; FERPA

- Federal constitutional claims

- Examples: First Amendment;
Fourth Amendment; Due Process;
Equal Protection

Local decisions can either increase or decrease a school
district’s liability risk under state and federal law

(e.g., policies/contracts).

9/26/2017

51



i

$
9/26/2017

Liability and Risk Management:
Protection from Liability

Legal: Local:
- Immunity . Policies, procedures, and training
- Statutes of limitations (and similar) + Insurance
- Damages limitations (type/amount) - Bonding of school officials
- Denying a private right of action - Risk shifting via contract / waivers
- Indemnification « Forum selection via contract (including
arbitration clauses)
« Mandatory exhaustion of
administrative remedies . Settlements
« Worker's compensation

Caution: There are often “exceptions to the protections.”

Example: Protection from Liability Under
Certain State Law Claims

» “Notice of Claim” requirement Wisconsin Statutes §893.80

> Aclaimant must provide written notice of the circumstances of a claim within 120 days
of the happening of the event giving rise to the claim.

v Limited governmental immunity Wisconsin Statutes §893.80

» Most important exceptions in tort cases: “ministerial” actions; known dangers

» $50,000 damages cap applicable to tort claims against a school district,
officer, employee, or agent Wisconsin Statutes §893.80

. Example of an exception: $250,000 / injured person for a school employee’s negligent
operation of a motor vehicle Wisconsin Statute §345.05

» Governmental indemnification Wisconsin Statutes §895.35

« The school district must reimburse school officials and employees for civil
judgments and costs (including reasonable attorney fees)

+ Examples of an exception: Most intentional torts, acts outside the scope of employment

52



»

Example: Protection from individual liability
under certain federal constitutional claims

Wisconsin's state law “Notice of Claim” requirement, governmental
immunity statute, and tort claim damages limitations do NOT apply to

federal claims (or even to all state-based claims).

Federal courts will consider claims of “qualified immunity” for individual
public employees who are sued for damages for alleged violations of
others’ constitutional rights.

= Qualified immunity is available when the individual being sued did not violate
any rights that were “clearly established” under applicable law at the time of the
incident.

= Qualified immunity is not available when the suit is against the school district as
an entity.

Wisconsin’s governmental indemnification statutes generally will apply
even if “qualified immunity” is not granted (Wisconsin Statutes §895.35
and Wisconsin Statute §895.46).

M

What are the risk management implications of the
liability environment in which school officials find

themselves?

. The various state statutes that grant immunity from liability protect

against a fairly narrow range of claims;

The governmental indemnification statutes protect officials/femployees
against a broad range of claims and judgments; and

. The costs of defending against a claim (even when the school district

ultimately prevails) can be very substantial.

Understand how all of the district’s liability mitigation measures, including its
insurance policies, are working together; identify and address areas of weakness;

Conduct a regular insurance review; address specific coverage issues and other
questions with your insurers;

Determine whether budget decisions may need to account for potential
liabilities;

key personnel understand risk management principles and procedures

Ensure
: ee next slide);

9/26/2017

93



Liability and Risk Management
Strategies to Reduce and Manage Risk

» Direct key staff to conduct periodic reviews of policies and practices in
their area of programs and operations, with an emphasis on health

and safety:

Supervision of students Facilities
Personnel policies Technology
Financial controls Transportation
Student confidentiality Food service

» Such reviews should include staff training/in-service processes
related to standards of conduct, complaint processing, incident
documentation, etc.

» When in doubt, contact call your attorneys, your insurance carrier,
and/or (for more general information) WASB Legal and HR staff
T amsaiormation

Presenter Bio

Bob Butler has been a WASB staff counsel since 1990, He is
also, along with attorney Barry Forbes, the Association’s co-
associate executive diréctor, Bob directly represents more
than 40 school districts in Wisconsin on ‘employment, human
resources and school law matters. Bob also provides
membership services, including general legal information, to
all school districts that are members of WASB.

He graduated from the University of Wisconsin Law School
and received his undergraduate degree in industrial and
Iatbor relations from Cornell University. Bob can be contacted
at: - ;

bbutler@wasb.org

1-877-705-4422 (phone)
1-608-512-1703 (direct phone)
1-608-257-8386 (fax)

i

0/26/2017

54



This presentation is a product of the Wisconsin
Association of School Boards, Inc.

This presentation is intended to provide authoritative
general information, with commentary, as a service to
WASB members.

The materials and information provided in this

presentation should not be relied upon as legal advice.

If needed, legal advice regarding any topic, issue,
situation or incident should be obtained from the
school district's legal counsel.

© 2017

9/26/2017

55



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Monday, November 13,2017
6:00 pm
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

I. Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann
Eric Busse Keith Hennig
David Hamilton John Rasmussen
Il. Approve Agenda.
lll. Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:
e American Education Week — November 13-17, 2017
e Wisconsin Association of School Board Convention (WASB) =
IV. Public Presentations.
V. Information & Discussion:
A. High School Student Board Represent
2018 Potential Referendum Update
School Board Election Timelin

Ava Parl;ﬂer
ddy Krueger

Vi. PublicPresej
VIl. Business (A

VIIl. Consent (Ac

B.

IX. Future Agenda —December 11, 2017, Regular Board Meeting Agenda.

X. Executive Session — Under Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) to consider employment,
promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which
the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility; namely to Discuss
Administrators’ Performances.

Xl.  Reconvene Into Open Session to Take Action, if Necessary, On Any Open or Closed Session
Items.
Xil. Adjourn.



Evansville Community School District
Annual Meeting Minutes for October 9, 2017

The Annual Meeting of the Evansville Community School District was held in the District Board
and Training Center on October 9, 2017, at 7:00 pm pursuant to the notice in the Evansville
Review and posted throughout the District as required by law.

There were 14 resident voters in attendance at the meeting.
The meeting was called to order by Board President Mason Braunschweig.

Mr. Mason Braunschweig asked for nominations from the floor to elect a chairman. Mr. Jerry
Roth nominated Mr. Scott Everson. No further nominations. Nominations closed. Mr. Scott
Everson ran the meeting.

Mr. Rasmussen presented the 2016 Minutes for all to review.

Treasurer Melissa Hammann deferred the Debt Service Schedule and questions to Mr. Steve
Swanson, Business Manager.

Mr. Steve Swanson, Business Manager, presented on the debt service budget/tax levy, a
Department of Public Instruction revenue limit worksheet, and that the adoption of the tax levy
new amount will be $8,230,822.

Motion by Mr. Jerry Roth, seconded by Mr. Mason Braunschweig, moved to approve Resolution
A-Adoption of Tax Levy, be it resolved that there shall be levied upon the taxable property of the
Evansville Community School District the sum of $8,230,822 for the purpose of funding the
operation and maintenance of the public schools as per fund 10, 39, and 80 presented for
adoption. Motion carried unanimously (voice vote).

Motion by Mr. Keith Hennig, seconded by Mr. Mason Braunschweig, moved to approve
Resolution B-Transportation, be it resolved that the District be authorized to offer transportation
to all students in grades K-8, in the morning only, who reside one half (1/2) mile to two (2) miles
from school, from designated pick up points, for the purpose of alleviating traffic congestion
around Levi Leonard Elementary, Theodore Robinson Intermediate and J.C. McKenna Middle
School. Motion carried unanimously (voice vote).

Motion by Mr. Jerry Roth, seconded by Mr. Brian Cashore, moved to approve Resolution C-
Salaries of Board Members, be it resolved that the annual salaries of the school board members
be $1,600 for officers and $1,500 for members. Motion carried, voice vote (one abstained).

Motion by Mr. Jerry Roth, seconded by Mr. Mason Braunschweig, moved to approve Resolution
D-Selection Date of Annual Meeting, be it resolved to grant the Board of Education the flexibility
to set the date of the 2018 annual meeting between May 15, 2018, and October 31, 2018, at
7:00 pm under the requirements of WIS STAT. 117.08, 117.09 or 117.27. Motion carried
unanimously (voice vote).

Page 1 of 2



Chair, Mr. Scott Everson asked for other new business. There being no other business, motion by
Mr. Keith Hennig, seconded by Mr. Mason Braunschweig, moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion
carried unanimously (voice vote).

Meeting adjourned at 7:16 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Clerk John Rasmussen

Mason, President Dated

Page 2 of 2



